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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Good afternoon,

          3  I am Jim Gennaro.  I am Chairman of the Committee on

          4  Environmental Protection.

          5                 I would like to welcome you to

          6  today's hearing. Today the Committee will hear

          7  testimony on Intros. Number 53, 54, 55, and 145.

          8                 Most of us gathered here today, if

          9  not all of us, have heard New York City referred to

         10  as "the City that never sleeps".

         11                 As a global center of commerce and

         12  culture, New York City is a bustling whirlwind of

         13  activity, yet, it is also the homes of millions of

         14  residents.  These various activities, many of which

         15  fuel the City's economy, or are important elements

         16  of our lives, produce noise in a number of ways.

         17  Such as, noise from cars and trucks, planes,

         18  factories, lawn care devises, radios, just to name a

         19  few.

         20                 However, according to a report from

         21  Rutgers entitled, "Local Noise Enforcement Options

         22  and Model Noise Ordinance", noise is a major

         23  contributor to reduced quality of life that

         24   "exposure to noise in community settings can result

         25  in significant physiological, biochemical and
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          2  psychological impacts".

          3                 Therefore, we must ensure that these

          4  activities do not adversely affect the quality of

          5  life of other residents of our City by creating

          6  excessive and/or disturbing noise.

          7                 The legislation for us today aims to

          8  improve the quality of life for all New Yorkers by

          9  targeting those individuals who create and subject

         10  others to excessive and preventable noise.

         11                 Intros. Number 53, 54, and 55 speak

         12  to this issue, speak to the issue noise caused by

         13  motorcycles.

         14                 Intro. Number 145 would expand the

         15  general provision by which noise violations are

         16  issued pursuant to the New York City Noise Code to

         17  include sound that is "plainly audible".  Although I

         18  am keenly aware of how important various commercial

         19  and recreational activities are to making sure that

         20  our City remains vibrant, and our City's economy

         21  remains robust, I believe that we can find common

         22  ground, whereby, these various activities can occur,

         23  while simultaneously protecting the quality of

         24  neighborhood life.

         25                 And, let me just say from the outset,
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          2  that some of the Bills before us are controversial,

          3  people on both sides will have an opportunity to be

          4  heard, and to be heard fairly.  I am not currently a

          5  sponsor of any legislation before us today, so I

          6  have as open a mind as anyone could have regarding

          7  to arguments on both sides.

          8                 Before I call our first witness, I

          9  would like to ask Council Member Gerson, the prime

         10  sponsor of Intros. 53, 54, and 55, to make a brief

         11  opening statement regarding his legislation.

         12                 Before I do that, I just want to

         13  recognize the other Council people who are here with

         14  us today, of course, Council Member Gerson.  We have

         15  Council Members Recchia from Brooklyn, Council

         16  Member Vallone from Queens, Council Member Gallagher

         17  from Queens, who will be joined by other members of

         18  the Council in due course.

         19                 I also would like to recognize the

         20  good work of the staff of the Committee, Donna De

         21  Costanzo and Richard Colon for their good work, and

         22  of course, Chris Manning from the Mayor's Office,

         23  who always does such a good job in helping us

         24  getting these hearings going.

         25                 I also would like to take this
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          2  opportunity to introduce my own new Chief of Staff,

          3  Peter Washburn, Peter could take a little bow there,

          4  Peter's got an environmental background that goes

          5  back about 20 years.  We are happy to have him on

          6  staff, and next to Peter, my new Legislative Aid,

          7  her name is Correne Jean-Pierre, who just joined our

          8  staff, as well.  Correne, take a bow.

          9                 So, thank you all very much.  I

         10  recognize Council Member Gerson for an opening

         11  statement.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         13  very much, Mr. Chair, and anyone who knows you or

         14  has attended your hearings knows that you are the

         15  epitome of fairness and due process.  So, we know we

         16  will have a fair hearing.

         17                 I also, at the risk of being

         18  redundant, as I have said before, our City is better

         19  off environmentally, as well as in many other ways

         20  because you are the Chair of our Environmental

         21  Committee.  So, I thank you, and I thank you for

         22  organizing and holding this first hearing on these

         23  very important pieces of legislation.

         24                 I will be very brief, and address the

         25  content of the legislation as the hearing proceeds,
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          2  and our questioning sessions, and I will especially

          3  be brief because I am looking forward, as always, to

          4  hearing Commissioner Avaltroni, who has been a great

          5  ally in the effort to abate noise in our City.

          6                 Mr. Chair, I just need to though

          7  clarify one point, so we are all on the same page,

          8  whether we agree or disagree on the particulars.

          9                 This hearing, and these pieces of

         10  legislation are not anti-motorcycling or

         11  anti-motorcyclist.  This is not about eliminating

         12  motorcycling.  Responsible motorcycle use is a

         13  legitimate and appropriate means of transportation

         14  and recreation, for which we must, and undoubtedly

         15  will, continue to make room in our great and diverse

         16  City.

         17                 What we cannot tolerate, however, Mr.

         18  Chair, any longer is the infliction, the intentional

         19  infliction, of the horrendous, excessive noise from

         20  motorcycles which are not properly muffled or,

         21  indeed, which are outfitted purposely, and

         22  specifically to create, and to generate excessive

         23  noise that reaches the level to those on whom it

         24  infringes a physical assault.  Compounded by the

         25  reverberations of the car alarms which are set off
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          2  as these booming motorcycles zoom past.  I cannot

          3  tell you how many times I have heard from frantic

          4  and distressed neighbors, who are continually

          5  inflicted with this physical assault.  They, their

          6  senior parents or relatives, their children, unable

          7  to sleep, awakened, kept up with shock and shock

          8  waves in a way that is not necessary, and truly has

          9  no place in this City.  Responsible motorcycling we

         10  need to facilitate.  We cannot allow, we cannot

         11  tolerate the situation of the motorcyclist who was

         12  pulled over in one of the Police Departments

         13  operation checkpoints for operating an improper

         14  motorcycle generating that noise.  And this

         15  motorcyclist took off his helmet, and, lo and

         16  behold, the motorcyclist was wearing earplugs so he

         17  would not be affected by the noise that he was

         18  inflicting on those in his path.  That is just not

         19  right, and actually, and I will conclude on this

         20  note, as we will hear I am sure, it actually

         21  currently is illegal from my conversations with the

         22  Police Department, we know for safety reasons the

         23  Police will not chase and pull over a speeding or

         24  moving motorcycle.  So, we need to have better

         25  enforcement mechanisms, clarified regulations, and
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          2  true deterrent in penalties to enforce, and to

          3  implement the current law, in a current, reasonable,

          4  ambient noise source, with respect to motorcycles,

          5  again, allowing responsible motorcyclists, and quiet

          6  motorcycles to have opportunities to pursue their

          7  transportation and their recreation, while the rest

          8  of us have the opportunity to enjoy a reasonable bit

          9  of quiet.  New York will never be the quietest spot

         10  on earth, but we do not have to be as noisy as we

         11  now are, as a result of these improperly outfitted

         12  motorcycles.

         13                 So, I look forward to hearing from

         14  the City, to hearing witnesses from the community,

         15  and from the motorcycle industry.

         16                 I really will conclude on this, and I

         17  appeal to all, let us use this to brainstorm to find

         18  solutions, so we could live and let live, residents

         19  and motorcyclists, enforcement personnel, all alike.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         22  Council Member Gerson, and I would like to state

         23  also to clarify from my perspective, all of the

         24  activity that you just described, I also would not

         25  sanction or condone any of that kind of activity.  I
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          2  guess the controversial element that I was referring

          3  to would be to make these violations criminal.  That

          4  is a big step, and so I think that is one of the

          5  controversial elements here, but I do not think that

          6  anyone would disagree or people of reasonable

          7  sensitivities would not disagree that we have to do

          8  our best to keep a lid on noise that is harmful and

          9  offensive.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Excuse me,

         11  Mr. Chair.  I just was remiss.

         12                 I do need to acknowledge the role and

         13  the contributions of Council Member DeBlasio, who is

         14  a co-prime sponsor of the legislation.  Sure, he

         15  will be joining us but I want to thank him at the

         16  outset, along with all of my colleagues who have

         17  lent their support and input.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Absolutely.  At

         19  the risk of putting him on the spot, I know that

         20  Council Member Vallone has taken a real interest in

         21  the "plainly audible" noise standard.  I was going

         22  to call on Council Member Sanders to speak on behalf

         23  of the "plainly audible" noise standard.  In his

         24  absence, I was just wondering if Council Member

         25  Vallone had something to say on the "plainly
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          2  audible" noise standard.  Is that okay, Pete?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.  Very briefly, the "plainly audible"

          5  noise standard just makes plain sense, and I am

          6  pretty sure the Mayor's office will be behind it in

          7  their own way.  It is, as Council members know, we

          8  get noise complaints all the time, and the police

          9  are powerless to do anything about it if they do not

         10  have this decibel machine that measures the decibels

         11  because it is in a certain car, that is in a certain

         12  location that is nowhere near where we need it to

         13  be.

         14                 It makes perfect sense to allow a

         15  police officer to make judgements he makes every day

         16  of his life, while he is on the job, and determine

         17  whether he can hear something from a certain

         18  distance away, or a hundred feet, that he should not

         19  be able to hear, he or she.  So, it makes plain

         20  sense, and I commend you for having this hearing and

         21  moving on this, and I, hopefully, will be commending

         22  the Police Department in the City for helping us

         23  along.              Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         25  Council Member Vallone.
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          2                 So, now it is my honor and privilege

          3  to invite two good friends, DEP Deputy Commissioner

          4  Bob Avaltroni, and Susan Petito from the Police

          5  Department.  Always a pleasure to have you here, and

          6  we greatly appreciate your testimony that you will

          7  be giving us on these important issues.

          8                 That being said, we are still going

          9  to swear you in anyway, as we do with all of our

         10  witnesses, so, I will ask Counsel to the Committee,

         11  Donna De Costanzo to give the oath, and then you can

         12  identify yourselves for the record, and proceed with

         13  your good testimony.

         14                 Thank you for coming.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Please

         16  raise your right hand.  In the testimony that you

         17  are about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         18  the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

         19  truth?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         21  will.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  I do.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Thank

         25  you, okay, good afternoon, Mr,. Chairman, Committee
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          2  members.

          3                 I am Bob Avaltroni, Deputy

          4  Commissioner of the Bureau of Environmental

          5  Compliance at New York City DEP.

          6                 The New York City Department of

          7  Environmental Protection is proud of its long effort

          8  to improve the quality of life for all New Yorkers

          9  by enforcing the Noise Code contained in Title 24 of

         10  the New York City Administrative Code.

         11                 The issue of noise in New York is a

         12  complex one, and one that requires that changes to

         13  the Noise Code be made to account for all the

         14  various types of noise issues.

         15                 As the Committee is aware, the

         16  Bloomberg Administration has begun major revisions

         17  to the Noise Code, which we will be unveiling

         18  shortly.

         19                 I would like to take this opportunity

         20  to first comment on Intro. 145, a bill that DEP and

         21  the Administration fundamentally agrees with, but

         22  which we feel is too vague with respect to

         23  enforcement, and again, please accept the testimony

         24  and the comments we have here in a spirit of working

         25  together, and I think Councilman Gerson suggested

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that at the offset.

          3                 The concept of a "plainly audible"

          4  standard is a more objective standard than

          5  unreasonable noise when used with specific

          6  measurement criteria for each noise source.  This

          7  bill does not address the fact that different sound

          8  sources require different standards in which to

          9  measure the sound and different ambient levels.  A

         10  universal application of 100 feet and 50 feet from

         11  the source of noise during the hours of 7 am and 10

         12  pm, and 10 pm and 7 am respectively, does not

         13  account for the fact that different sound sources

         14  cannot accurately be measured from such distances or

         15  that they are not time specific noise issues.

         16                 Moreover, the distances mentioned may

         17  lack enough flexibility to be supported in all

         18  cases, when faced with legal challenges.  In certain

         19  instances it may be more permissive as in the case

         20  of sound reproduction devices, a common problem.

         21  For example, 24- 220`sound reproduction devices'

         22  currently allows a zero distance tolerance for

         23  storefront related sound reproduction. This bill may

         24  be interpreted to be in conflict with 24- 220

         25  subdivision (b) by allowing that sound to be heard
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          2  50- 100 feet away depending on the time of day.

          3                 As you will soon see, the

          4  Administration's proposed legislation effectively

          5  addresses such variables and provides comprehensive

          6  amendments to the Code to ensure that noise is

          7  abated within the City of New York.

          8                 Before I comment on the motorcycle

          9  legislation that directly impacts upon DEP, Intros.

         10  54 and 55, I need to explain to the Committee that

         11  DEP is not a proper agency in which to give seizure

         12  power to motorcycles and straight pipes.

         13                 Intro. 53 amends Title 10, and

         14  provides DEP the ability to seize a motorcycle that

         15  is equipped with a straight pipe.  DEP, for public

         16  safety concerns, does not wish employees to engage

         17  in the potentially dangerous situation of forcing an

         18  owner to turn his or her vehicle off.  This agency

         19  has always worked with the Police Department (PD) in

         20  any operation involving the stopping of a vehicle.

         21  For example, DEP has used the law enforcement

         22  expertise of PD when conducting a MARCH initiatives,

         23  that is the Multi Agency Response to Chronic

         24  Hotspots.

         25                 Although DEP cannot speak for the
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          2  Police Department, it appears from the Vehicle and

          3  Traffic Law 375 (31- b), that the PD can already

          4  write violations to an individual who sells,

          5  installs or uses a motorcycle exhaust device without

          6  internal baffles, known as "straight pipes".  It is,

          7  therefore, unnecessary to grant PD  an authority

          8  they already have under the Consolidate Laws of New

          9  York, as they are governed by the New York City

         10  Charter.

         11                 DEP has reservations concerning

         12  Intro. 54.  This bill prohibits a person from

         13  operating a motorcycle that creates unreasonable

         14  noise, and creates criminal and civil penalties for

         15  such violations.  However, the bill does not define

         16  the`unreasonable noise standard'.  This term is open

         17  to a high degree of interpretation, and should be

         18  clarified to allow for a more objective and

         19  measurable definition.  A more objective standard

         20  such as "plainly audible", accompanied with a

         21  specific measurement in which to determine when the

         22  noise is "plainly audible", would best reduce the

         23  noise that emanates from motorcycles and enable

         24  inspectors to enforce this prohibition.

         25                 Finally, Intro. 55 seeks to prohibit
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          2  motorcycles that cause excessive or unusual noise

          3  from operating on any public street of highway.

          4  Such a prohibition is already captured under VTL 375

          5  (31) and (31- b).  Amending Title 24 to reflect such

          6  a change is unnecessary as it is already captured in

          7  the VTL and DEP does not, from a public safety

          8  perspective, as I illuded to before, wish to seize

          9  motorcycles that are in violation of this

         10  prohibition.

         11                 DEP is best able to reduce noise from

         12  motorcycles, which is the intent of this bill, by

         13  creating an objective standard that is capable of

         14  enforcement.  One of the Administration's proposed

         15  revisions creates such a standard, and provides for

         16  civil penalties for those who are in violation.

         17                 I would just like to say that the

         18  Mayor also understands that this is a vibrant city,

         19  but I have never met a person that also understands

         20  that to improve the quality of life, to make the

         21  City a quieter place, is one of the key objectives

         22  of this Administration.

         23                 I thank you for allowing me to

         24  testify, and look forward to answering your

         25  questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          3  thank you very much for your testimony, and we will

          4  direct questions once we hear from Susan Petito from

          5  the Police Department.

          6                 Susan, thank you.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Thank

          8  you, good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and members of

          9  the Council.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am sorry, if

         11  I could, I am sorry Susan.  Forgive me for

         12  interrupting, I just would like to point out for

         13  everybody here, that we are joined by the Principle

         14  Sponsor of the "Plainly Audible" Noise Bill, James

         15  Sanders, to my left.

         16                 Council Member Sanders, it is good to

         17  have you here.

         18                 Sorry about that.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  On

         20  behalf of Police Commissioner Raymond W. Kelly, I

         21  would like to thank you for this opportunity to

         22  speak with you regarding three of the bills before

         23  you today, Intro. Nos. 53, 54, and 55.

         24                 I am Assistant Commissioner Susan

         25  Petito of the NYPD's Office of the Deputy

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Commissioner, Legal Matters, and I am joined, to my

          3  left, by Assistant Commissioner Robert Messner of

          4  NYPD's Civil Enforcement Unit.

          5                 We share the Council's concern

          6  regarding unreasonable noise generated by

          7  motorcycles whose operators fail to appreciate the

          8  public harm and annoyance they cause.

          9                 In recognition of the problem that

         10  some motorcycle operators create, the State Vehicle

         11  and Traffic Law (VTL) established prohibitions

         12  regarding equipment and noise levels specifically

         13  for motorcycles.

         14                 VTL Section 375 sets forth general

         15  equipment requirements for motor vehicles in New

         16  York State, violation of which are traffic

         17  infractions, punishable by up to 15 days in jail,

         18  and/or a fine of $100 for the first offense.

         19  Penalties increase with multiple offenses within an

         20  18- month period.

         21                 Subdivision 31 describes the

         22  permissible  muffler and exhaust system,

         23  specifically referencing prevention of noise, and

         24  requires that motor vehicles operated on public

         25  streets be equipped with an adequate muffler and
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          2  exhaust system, properly maintained, with no cutout

          3  or bypass, and with no modification to amplify or

          4  increase the noise.

          5                 Subdivision 31- a makes it a traffic

          6  infraction to "sell, install or use a motorcycle

          7  exhaust devise without internal baffles, known

          8  as`straight pipes'"

          9                 Subdivision 31- b prohibits selling,

         10  installing or using a motorcycle exhaust device

         11   "that is intentionally designed to allow for the

         12  internal baffling to be fully or partially removed

         13  or interchangeable."

         14                 VTL Section 381 goes further,

         15  addressing itself to motorcycle equipment in

         16  particular.  Violation of this section of law is a

         17  misdemeanor, punishable by up to 30 days in jail

         18  and/or a $100 fine.

         19                 Subdivision 11 prohibits operation on

         20  a public street of a motorcycle which is "(1) not

         21  equipped with a muffler to prevent excessive or

         22  unusual noise; (2) equipped with a muffler from

         23  which the baffle plates, screens or other original

         24  internal parts have been removed or altered; (3)

         25  equipped with an exhaust device without internal
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          2  baffles, known a`straight pipes,' or

          3  (4) equipped with an exhaust system that has been

          4  modified in a manner that will amplify or increase

          5  the noise emitted by the motor of such vehicle above

          6  that emitted by the exhaust system originally

          7  installed on the vehicle."

          8                 Subdivision 12 similarly prohibits

          9  operating a motorcycle "which is equipped with an

         10  exhaust device that is intentionally designed to

         11  allow for the internal baffling to be fully or

         12  partially removed or interchangeable."

         13                 Beyond equipment specifications, the

         14  VTL sets forth permissible sound levels for

         15  motorcycles, as measured from 50 feet away.  Section

         16  386, Subdivision 3 (d) makes it a traffic infraction

         17  to generate sound exceeding 82 decibels while

         18  traveling at 35 miles per hour or less, or 86

         19  decibels while traveling over 35 miles an hour.

         20  However, the City's Noise Code also establishes

         21  permissible sound levels for motorcycles, violation

         22  of which is a misdemeanor punishable by up to 20

         23  days and/or a fine of $50- $500 for a first offense,

         24  with penalties increasing for multiple violations.

         25                 In addition to the general
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          2  prohibition against unreasonable noise,

          3  Administrative Code Section 23- 232 establishes

          4  decibel limits for motorcycles measured at 50 feet

          5  as:  78 decibels at 35 miles an hour or less, and 82

          6  decibels at over 35.  However, local law also

          7  establishes a decibel limit measured at 25 feet:  84

          8  decibels 35 miles an hour or less, and 88 decibels

          9  at over 35 miles an hour.

         10                 With this comprehensive set of laws

         11  in place to address the problem of unreasonable

         12  motorcycle noise, one may well wonder why this

         13  problem is not easily eradicated.  The major reason

         14  is that motorcycles in motion are usually gone

         15  before an enforcement action may be taken, and all

         16  that remains is the memory of the ear- splitting

         17  sound.  Motorcycles are also more difficult to

         18  overtake in a dense urban environment using a

         19  standard patrol car, a situation in which the safety

         20  of the public must be considered paramount.

         21                 Another problem, especially with

         22  respect to enforcement of the equipment violations,

         23  is the technical nature of the violation.  A

         24   "straight pipe" may closely resemble a regular

         25  muffler, and most police officers are not experts in
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          2  detecting internally altered muffler systems, except

          3  of course, for the noise.

          4                 The language of the VTL presents a

          5  high technical burden to establish that a muffler

          6  was altered, for example, or has no baffles, or is

          7   "intentionally designed to allow for the internal

          8  baffling to be fully or partially removed or

          9  interchangeable." Further, the possession, by

         10  itself, of an altered muffler or "straight pipe"

         11  does not harm or inconvenience the public, unless it

         12  is used to create unreasonable noise.

         13                 Therefore, we are unable to support

         14  Intro. Number 53, outlawing the distribution, sale,

         15  installation or operation of "straight pipes" or a

         16  motorcycle equipped with "straight pipes". The bill

         17  mirrors language already contained in the VTL,

         18  incorporating the difficulties of enforcing

         19  motorcycle equipment violations into local law.

         20                 We understand that a primary goal of

         21  the legislation is to enable an enforcement officer

         22  to seize a motorcycle or straight pipe which has

         23  been used to violate the law.  The ability to seize

         24  such equipment already exists, through

         25  Administrative Code Section 14- 140, which allows
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          2  the Police Department to seek forfeiture of property

          3  which is the proceeds or instrumentality of crime.

          4  The process of seizing and forfeiting property in

          5  this manner is governed by a federal consent decree

          6  by Police Department rule, and by a recent federal

          7  court decision, known as the "Krimstock" case, which

          8  places significant responsibilities on the Police

          9  Department to ensure that the forfeiture process is

         10  fair, and that those whose property is seized have

         11  adequate opportunity to reclaim it.

         12                 In essence, the decision requires

         13  that a person whose property has been seized receive

         14  an immediate opportunity for a hearing to adjudicate

         15  the seizure, rather than awaiting adjudication of

         16  the underlying violation and a demand for the

         17  property by the claimant.  We believe that the

         18  seizure and forfeiture provisions of Intro. Number

         19  53 would violate the Krimstock guidelines, and

         20  hence, we would be unable to utilize them.

         21                 In addition to the inconsistency with

         22  the Krimstock decision that the bill presents, there

         23  are other issues which should be noted.

         24                 Intro. Number 53 requires that an

         25  individual be convicted of the particular violation
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          2  of the new Section 10- 137 in order for forfeiture

          3  to result.  However, an offender is often allowed to

          4  plead to a lesser offense in satisfaction of a

          5  criminal charge.  Notwithstanding the offender's

          6  guilt, he or she would be able to evade forfeiture

          7  of the property because the conviction was not

          8  technically for the section of law charged.

          9  Further, the bill treats a motorcycle as abandoned

         10  if it is not claimed within 20 business days of

         11  notice to the owner that a decision was made in his

         12  or her favor regarding the underlying violation,

         13  pursuant to VTL Section 1224.  However, in such

         14  circumstances, Section 1224 vests ownership of the

         15  motorcycle in the City ten days after notice to the

         16  owner.

         17                 We would also point out that giving

         18  the Environmental Control Board the responsibility

         19  to adjudicate motorcycle equipment violations may

         20  not be practical, given the technical nature of the

         21  subject matter, and the lack of experience the ECB

         22  may have in this area.  The Traffic Violations

         23  Bureau remains a more appropriate and experienced

         24  forum.  Of course, the ECB is expert in adjudicating

         25  noise violations, and we suggest that
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          2  current law acknowledges this as a preferable

          3  alternative to address the problem.

          4                 Finally, we note that a motorcycle

          5  muffler can be made noisier by doing something as

          6  simple as drilling holes in it, a circumstance which

          7  is not covered by the bill, but is covered by the

          8  VTL.

          9                 With respect to Intro. Number 54, we

         10  have the same reservations about the seizure and

         11  forfeiture provisions as we discussed regarding

         12  Number 53.  Number 54 differs in that it does

         13  properly place the emphasis on the actual noise

         14  produced by the motorcycle, rather than the

         15  equipment which produces it.  However, even though

         16  placing the responsibility for seizure and

         17  forfeiture of motorcycles within the DEP may

         18  eliminate the applicability of the Krimstock case to

         19  this type of forfeiture, it is our understanding

         20  that the DEP does not routinely seize or forfeit

         21  property in this manner.  They also do not have the

         22  training or experience to conduct vehicle stops as

         23  contemplated by the bill.

         24                 We, therefore, defer to their

         25  expertise in analyzing the potential consequences of
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          2  the bill to them.

          3                 With respect to Number 55, the

          4  language of the bill mirrors VTL Section 381,

          5  Subdivision 11, thereby creating a parallel

          6  misdemeanor in local law, and a civil penalty

          7  scheme. However, the problem of focusing on

          8  equipment violations rather than noise violations,

          9  as noted previously, also apply to this bill, and it

         10  is unclear what the intended civil penalties are

         11  based on the draft before us.

         12                 Therefore, we are unable to support

         13  Number 55,

         14  as well.

         15            Thank you for allowing us the opportunity

         16  to speak with you today, and we will be pleased to

         17  answer your questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         19  Thank you both for your comprehensive testimony.  We

         20  appreciate you coming in with such, as I said, such

         21  detailed, comprehensive testimony.

         22                 Before I begin my questions of both

         23  of the witnesses, I would like to give Council

         24  Member Sanders, the prime sponsor of Intro. 145, the

         25  opportunity to make a brief statement.
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          2                 Council Member Sanders.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.  This hearing is very much the order of

          5  the day, and I really appreciate, I personally

          6  appreciate it, and on behalf of the good people of

          7  the 31st Councilmanic District, we certainly

          8  appreciate having our day at the City hearing at the

          9  City Council.

         10                 I welcome both of you for coming to

         11  testify.

         12                 I must admit that I am a little

         13  dismayed that I have not heard of a way that we will

         14  make things work.

         15                 Arguably, New York City is the most

         16  noisy city on the planet.  As a matter of fact, when

         17  our good Mayor created the telephone line 311, the

         18  number one cause for concern, the number one

         19  complaint, which overshadowed all other complaints,

         20  almost by a 2 to 1, by all other complaints

         21  combined, was noise in New York City.

         22                 Now, I am blessed to be in the 31st

         23  where we have such leading civic groups as the

         24  Rosedale Civic, of which Fred Crest and some other

         25  members may, Fred is here, and other members may be
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          2  here, and when my constituents bring me these type

          3  of concerns we, of course, have to act.  So, I am

          4  going to just encourage my colleagues that the City

          5  Council has the right and, no, it is more of an

          6  obligation to of course protect the people of New

          7  York against all type of pollution, including noise.

          8    Not just for this generation, but for future ones.

          9

         10                 I will hold out on questions until

         11  the right moment. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         12  Thank you very much Co- Chair, I thought I saw

         13  Councilman Vallone in here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         15  Council Member Sanders for your leadership on Intro.

         16  145, and speaking of leadership, one of the leaders

         17  on the motorcycle bills, and one of the co-prime

         18  sponsors who has been pushing me and this Committee

         19  to have a hearing on the motorcycle bills is Council

         20  Member DeBlasio, so I would like to give him the

         21  opportunity to make a brief statement on the

         22  motorcycle related bills.

         23                 Council Member DeBlasio.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 First of all, you are a very easy

          3  person to lobby because you care very deeply on

          4  this, and a whole range of other environmental

          5  issues, and I cannot thank you enough for scheduling

          6  this hearing.  I know you had a lot of other

          7  important priorities, and thank you very much for

          8  doing that.

          9                 I want to give credit where it really

         10  is due also, in terms of the drafting of the bill to

         11  Alan Gerson who, I think, really understood what was

         12  happening at the grass root level, and this is

         13  always our challenge as elected officials, and I am

         14  sure as other public servants, to hear what is

         15  happening on the ground and try and find a solution

         16  that will actually work.

         17                 I want to commend Alan Gerson for

         18  coming forward with something to deal with what we

         19  hear everyday from our constituents, and in my

         20  district in Brooklyn, I cannot tell you the various,

         21  amazing permutations you hear day in and day out of

         22  noise complaints, whether it is the car alarms, the

         23  motorcycles, you name it.  But, it is fundamental to

         24  quality of life in this City, and we have got to

         25  find ways to act on it.  I think it is commendable
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          2  that the Administration has put such a focus on it.

          3  I think it is commendable you are moving forward

          4  with legislative options.  I think it is crucial

          5  that we move forward aggressively, as well, and I

          6  think it is a good example of how the two branches

          7  of government can push each other to a good

          8  solution, that everyone feels some urgency because

          9  our constituents desperately feel that urgency.

         10                 I also want to just say I know that

         11  this is a situation where there are a lot of good

         12  people trying to find a solution, and there are a

         13  lot of wonderful folks who own motorcycles and

         14  operate motorcycles, and unfortunately, as with

         15  everything else in life, we are dealing with a few

         16  bad apples here. But, we need these laws to be

         17  strengthened, and we need the close cooperation of

         18  these two agencies to make it work on the ground and

         19  protect our communities.

         20                 I also want to just apologize for the

         21  fact I am only here briefly here today.  I am about

         22  to go out of town, and I want to thank you for this

         23  opportunity to say a few words.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         25  Councilman DeBlasio.
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          2                 I will start the questioning.  I am

          3  going to give a fair amount of latitude to the

          4  sponsors of the bills to ask for perhaps, most of

          5  the questions but I just have a couple of things I

          6  want to ask about.

          7                 Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni, with

          8  regard, you mentioned in your statement about the

          9  major revisions to the Noise Code, which you know

         10  has been under way for quite a while, and you

         11  indicated would be unveiled shortly, and certainly

         12  the revision of the Noise Code and the whole package

         13  of efforts that will be put forward.  Some of those,

         14  of course, will be legislative, and will have to

         15  come before this Committee, and I was wondering when

         16  the full roll- out of the whole host of initiatives

         17  will come our way.            Do you have a date on

         18  that?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  As I

         20  suggested, Mr. Chairman, it will be shortly.  When I

         21  say shortly, we are looking at something--.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Weeks, months?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  What

         24  we want to do, and again, let me just comment also

         25  at the Councilman Sanders and also Councilman
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          2  deBlasio, we are with you every step of the way in

          3  terms of, and I think, we need a collaborative

          4  effort, and we acknowledge that.  There is no doubt

          5  about it.

          6                 As I said in my testimony, you are

          7  very right that the Mayor with his initiative three,

          8  when one did a tremendous service to the people of

          9  the City of New York because while it looks like a

         10  negative that you have such significant complaints

         11  with respect to noise, I think what you have is, the

         12  Mayor's created a forum to be heard, no pun

         13  intended.  And, what we will be presenting will be

         14  something, obviously, that will require negotiations

         15  with the Council and the support of the Council, and

         16  we are covering all aspects of noise in New York

         17  City.  Again, recognizing that we have a vibrant

         18  city, a "city that never sleeps", but acknowledging

         19  that they people of the City of New York have to

         20  sleep, and there has to be respect shown by both

         21  sides.

         22                 So, I think what we have here, and

         23  what will be presented to you, will be in essence, a

         24  compromise to ensure that people can live in the

         25  City of New York peacefully, can do business in the
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          2  City of New York, whether it be in an office work

          3  place or in the construction industry.

          4                 So, what we will be coming to you to

          5  cover a multi faceted approach that will address the

          6  needs of the citizens that you represent, as well as

          7  the Mayor, and that will come very shortly.

          8                 I do not want to give you an exact

          9  date but it will be coming very shortly.  As we

         10  speak, some very fine people are finalizing areas

         11  that need to be finalized.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, and I can

         13  certainly verify that because when I called over to

         14  DEP to speak to Charlie Sterick (phonetic) and/or to

         15  Mark Lanigan or to yourself often here as well, they

         16  are over at the Law Department talking about the

         17  Noise Code, so, I know that there is a lot of

         18  activity going on, and I have actually had to speak

         19  to DEP and get them from over at the Law Department

         20  to return my calls, so, I know there is a lot of

         21  good activity going on.  But, the sooner the better,

         22  you certainly want to work out all the kinks or

         23  whatever but we are really, the people of the City

         24  have a real anticipation that they can expect a

         25  quieter city, and the sooner we get that going the
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          2  better because we are really getting hit from our

          3  end.  People agree with the Mayor that there can be

          4  more done to make this a more quiet city, and we

          5  thank you for your efforts to date.  We are just

          6  getting a little anxious from our end, so you know

          7  what we will do?

          8                 We will try to make the hearing short

          9  so that you can get back and finish working on that.

         10    How's that?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  All

         12  right.  Thank you very much and we hear you, again,

         13  the Mayor recognizes the 30 year old Noise Code,

         14  obviously he has been bold enough to take steps to

         15  correct that condition, and I think people will be

         16  very happy with what we propose.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Bob.

         18

         19                 Would that be Assistant Commissioner,

         20  Susan Petito?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  With regard to

         23  Intro. 145, I notice your statement did not speak to

         24  Intro. 145, although you were invited, that is the

         25  PD was invited to give testimony on the Intro. 145.
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          2                 Is there any reason why Intro. 145

          3  was not covered as part of your remarks, or did I

          4  miss it?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  No,

          6  no, it is only because Commissioner Avaltroni is

          7  speaking of behalf of the City for that bill.  He is

          8  the expert.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  So,

         11  we were deferring to his expertise in that, as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  He clearly is

         13  an expert, and one thing I could not help, I guess

         14  this is more an observation on my part before I turn

         15  it over to some of my Members for questions, it just

         16  seems to be with the Noise Code, all kinds of

         17  technical and legal and technical/legal reasons why

         18  people, and other reasons why people cannot get

         19  relief from noise issues, and why when we put

         20  legislation forward or you yourselves trying to

         21  craft the Noise Code, you are running into all these

         22  legal roadblocks and logistical parameters why this

         23  cannot happen, and that cannot happen, and like you

         24  cannot chase the guy because he is on a motorcycle,

         25  and you are in a police car, and you cannot do this
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          2  because of that, you cannot do this because of the

          3  State, and I guess it is my fervent hope that we

          4  will just really find a way to get to "yes" on some

          5  of these pressing issues, and not have all this

          6  endless reasons of why we cannot get things done in

          7  a better way.  That is kind of a general

          8  observation.

          9                 Did you anything that you just wanted

         10  to respond to like with respect to that?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         12  Again, I think what we are looking at is, we want to

         13  close any loopholes so there is no mistaken identity

         14  to what the Noise Code says, and again, we are going

         15  to be dealing with the situation that takes into

         16  consideration the quality of life for New Yorkers.

         17  And the quality of life not only deals with noise

         18  issues, which we are talking about today.  It talks

         19  about the re- development of the City of New York,

         20  and we are doing that.  We all recognize that.  And,

         21  events of 9/11, obviously, took us into that mode.

         22                 We are pushing for a Noise Code that

         23  allows the people of the City to be respected with

         24  regard to an environment that is peaceful.  That

         25  allows us to develop a city where, again, people
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          2  will come and live and do business and that involves

          3  construction but there are ways to deal with that in

          4  a manner, and that is what we are going through by

          5  dotting every "I" and crossing every "T", and then,

          6  when we propose something to you, we will have

          7  looked at every issue from every conceivable angle,

          8  and present something that is well sealed.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We are more

         10  than ready, and we welcome that but I am sure that

         11  some of the people who are besieged by noise

         12  complaints, listening perhaps to Commissioner

         13  Petito's comprehensive testimony about how this is

         14  covered by the State, and this is covered here, and

         15  this is covered there, but yet, people still believe

         16  that with all this coverage and all these various

         17  levels of government speaking to these sound issues,

         18  that they are still not getting the relief that they

         19  need because of all of the impediments.  And so I

         20  know this is going to be a real heavy lift to get

         21  the Noise Code where we want it to be but I implore

         22  you to do whatever you can to get that to us at the

         23  earliest possible date, so that we can hash that out

         24  and give peace and repose to the people who are

         25  paying us.
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          2                 So, that was really just a comment

          3  unless you wish to respond to it.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          5  we agree, and we will be doing that, and also let me

          6  remind you too, that we do have an existing Noise

          7  Code.  And, I know you good Council People, we work

          8  together very often.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  If

         11  you have problems in your areas that exist outside

         12  the box, let's call it outside the box, obviously,

         13  we have a very, very open communication, and we are

         14  certainly willing to work with you, as we have with

         15  Councilman Gerson in the past, when he had an issue

         16  with motorcycles, and Councilman Sanders, and also I

         17  offer that to you, as well.  That, we are not in

         18  essence waiting for a revised Noise Code, in fact to

         19  deal with the issues that you have problems with in

         20  your districts. And so, we again work as partners

         21  with you in government.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I would like to

         23  say that at least from my district, the amount of

         24  cooperation that we have enjoyed from your office,

         25  Bob, has been tremendous.  I have difficulty getting
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          2  my district to wake up because it is so peaceful

          3  there.

          4                 I am exaggerating but we have had a

          5  wonderful working relationship, and I thank you for

          6  all of the attention that you and your office have

          7  paid to particular complaints that we have had in my

          8  district, and I would urge all my colleagues to take

          9  advantage of Bob and his good staff, and all the

         10  good work that they do.

         11                 With that, I would like to recognize

         12  Council Member Sanders for questions, to be followed

         13  by Council Member Gerson.

         14                 Council Member Sanders.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair, as a matter of fact, I am going to have

         17  to import some of this silence from you district.  I

         18  may have to deprive you, Council Member Gerson also,

         19  but we need a little silence in my particular

         20  district.

         21                 Fred, would you mind just standing up

         22  for a second? I just want to put a human face, for

         23  better or worse, this is going to be the human face

         24  of a citizen who does not like noise in his

         25  district.  You can sit down, Sir, unless you want to
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          2  point anyone else out.  Fred, of course, is from the

          3  Rosedale Civic Association, and in the 31st, I am in

          4  a bind and perhaps you can help me with this one.

          5  They have grown so accustomed to government

          6  responding to them that if I went back to them with

          7  a by- and- by statement, if I went back to them and

          8  told them that soon we will have a Noise Bill, they

          9  would, and they should I guess, the would have me

         10  for dinner, Sir.

         11            It would not get on first base with them

         12  because they have been told these things by

         13  government before, in days gone by. Of course, this

         14  has nothing to do with you, and your colleague but

         15  this have to do with government must respond and

         16  when my constituents brought this bill, or a

         17  proposed bill to me, more than a year ago, we were

         18  told then, any moment DEP is going to come out with

         19  regulations around noise, and I use that on them for

         20  a while, and it is going a little thin.

         21                 Sir, can you narrow that window

         22  of`soon' and`very soon', understanding that

         23  perfection exists in the mind.  We will never have

         24  perfection, after that apple was bitten we will

         25  never see perfection in this world.  So, if we are
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          2  looking for a perfect bill, it does not exist, and

          3  you never will have one, except in the future to

          4  come, God willing.

          5                 In this world, how soon will we have

          6  some relief from this problem?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          8  Councilman Sanders, your point is well taken, and

          9  again, this is coming very soon, and I know you have

         10  heard that before but, let me speak to this.

         11                 Obviously, when you re- write a Noise

         12  Code that has been in existence for 30 years, there

         13  are a lot of variables to take into consideration,

         14  and also, it would be haphazard and irresponsible

         15  for any of us to put something out, just for the

         16  sake of saying, "You know what, here is a Noise

         17  Code, and it may have a lot of problems in it but it

         18  is something".

         19                 This Mayor has been, has had the

         20  courage to address quality of life situations and

         21  take a stance.  He is not a passive person.  His

         22  agenda is to make this quality of life in this City

         23  better for all people, noise being one of them.  We

         24  think that we have got this right, okay?  And, it

         25  will be coming up for review, with you folks, very
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          2  shortly.  I think you will be able to see that it

          3  will create a quieter environment for the City of

          4  New York without having it hamstrung with the

          5  business that we have to do, as well.

          6                 With respect to the constituent that

          7  is here today, again, your constituent is our

          8  constituent, okay, we are public servants, we work

          9  for those folks.  If there is a specific problem

         10  while we are waiting for the Noise Code, and I say

         11  waiting, we are not waiting with baited breath

         12  because it is coming, and it will be comprehensive.

         13  We would be happy to deal with you, as we have. Your

         14  office has been terrific with us, as well.  We are

         15  happy to deal with issues outside the box, as I

         16  suggested to Chairman Gennaro, to make the situation

         17  tolerable for people that live in this City, and

         18  that requires, very often, what we do for a living,

         19  mitigating.  You see, people think that when you

         20  enforce a Noise Code, that they only way you are

         21  going to force the compliance is by being heavy-

         22  handed.  That is simply not the case because then,

         23  in essence, we are underestimating, devaluing the

         24  common sense that all our people have.  We like to

         25  go out, and we will be a mediator to certain
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          2  situations, and to try to make a position where

          3  people are allowed to live in a peaceful

          4  environment, while business is able to be conducted.

          5

          6                 So, I offer that to you in this

          7  interim phase but the interim phase is a very short

          8  interim phase.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Well, I am

         10  going to address that in a second but let me deal

         11  directly with the issue of "plainly audible" noise.

         12  You see, we in the 31st like to keep life a little

         13  simple.  If we can hear noise 100 yards away, 100

         14  yards away in the evening and 50 feet away in the

         15  day, the opposite actually, 100 in the day and 50 in

         16  the evening, that sounds like

         17  it is "plainly audible".

         18                 What is wrong with a very common

         19  sense, very easy definition because of sounds, and I

         20  do not know if such a devise exists that can

         21  calibrate to all of the city sounds that we can

         22  have, and the cost of such a devise seems to be so

         23  excessive, that I myself would vote it down if it

         24  came before us.  So, why don't we use a simple

         25  definition that we can enforce, something that you
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          2  can take out a tape measurement and measure?  What

          3  is wrong with keeping it simple?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          5  Councilman, you are very astute.  What we do not

          6  want to be is restrictive, and we do not want to be

          7  restrictive to a certain distance.  In many cases we

          8  want some flexibility, as I eluded to in my

          9  testimony.  A common sense approach is a very, very

         10  good way to put it, and we have taken that into

         11  consideration, and you will see that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  My last

         13  question, and I turn it back to my Chair, is by-

         14  and- by, does that mean less than three months?

         15  That seems to be a large window, Sir.  Does that

         16  mean less than three, okay, I will be nice, three

         17  months or less? I will work with you.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I am

         19  looking forward to working with you, and I hear your

         20  concerns, and I am asking you because I have come

         21  before this Committee and I do not think I have ever

         22  let the Committee down with anything I have

         23  suggested.

         24                 We will be responsible to the needs

         25  of the people of the City.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me just

          3  state for the record, also, I have personal

          4  knowledge of how hard DEP, in conjunction with all

          5  the other agencies, are working this

          6  out on a day- by- day basis over at the Law

          7  Department, and there is just a lot of activity

          8  which I am very, very grateful for.  So, I just

          9  think that Deputy Commissioner Avaltroni has gone as

         10  far as he is going to go on answering that question.

         11    But, I would like to point out for the record, as

         12  I said, all of the hard work that I know is being

         13  done on a day- by- day basis, and we will just work

         14  with him in the interim until it comes out.

         15                 Thank you, Council Member Sanders.

         16                 And, before we go to Council Member

         17  Gerson for questions, we would just like to

         18  recognize my colleague from Queens, Allan Jennings,

         19  who has joined us, a member of the Committee.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I apologize

         21  to everyone for being late, and to our speakers here

         22  today, there are two Committee's that I have at the

         23  same time.  Consumer Affairs that starts at 1

         24  o'clock.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  And, this

          3  Committee that starts at 1 o'clock, so I had to

          4  spend some time there, and I am going to go back and

          5  forth.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I have good

          8  news though, I am in the process of cloning myself.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  So, you

         11  will all be happy to hear that.  So, I just thought

         12  I would stop by.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Thank

         14  you, Council Member Jennings.

         15                 Council Member Gerson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         17  very much, Mr. Chair, and my colleagues.

         18                 I do want to acknowledge the fact

         19  that DEP, and particularly you, Commissioner

         20  Avaltroni have been engaged and responsibly engaged

         21  in dialogue on these and other community issues

         22  consistently, and indeed, I think you and I have

         23  spoken about this for probably many years now, and

         24  look forward to seeing continued progress.

         25                 Before I get into the motorcycle
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          2  legislation, let me just follow up with one question

          3  on 145.  I understand, and I heard your concern

          4  about different noise sources, and in effect,

          5  different calibrations necessary for measurement and

          6  determination but isn't there some outer limit, some

          7  kind of outer framework that we could impose on the

          8  various different measures relating to distance and

          9  audibility, so that we could say, "Sure, we need to

         10  measure sound from these various sources, and the

         11  particular ways", but after doing that and when all

         12  is said and done, isn't there some point that we can

         13  safely say that noise should not be generated so it

         14  is "plainly audible" X number of feet from the

         15  source, as kind of a outer limit framework, wouldn't

         16  that be workable?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         18  Again, I thank you for your comments, and certainly

         19  we look forward to working with you positively, as

         20  we always have.  But, I think Councilman Sanders put

         21  it best when he referred to common sense, and I

         22  think what you will see will be a common sense

         23  approach where we are not restricted, our hands are

         24  not tied to any specific distance, sound, and it

         25  gives us the flexibility to enforce a Noise Code
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          2  that will achieve the desired result, and that is

          3  making the City quieter.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  All right,

          5  let me ask you about that a little bit further

          6  because I am a little concerned about making your

          7  hands available, not being tied, as you said. The

          8  current Noise Code for most Noise Code Violations

          9  requires, as we all know, decibel measurements,

         10  requiring the proper equipment.  I mean, just for

         11  the record, is that correct?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  For

         13  the most part you are accurate.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, as you

         15  said, for the most part, and I think what we have

         16  found in the community is a catch- 22 where we have

         17  those requirements but;  (a) enforcement personnel

         18  are unavailable during times of noise generation or

         19  whether there are enforcement personnel from your

         20  department or the police, and (b) they do not have

         21  the proper equipment, or they are not properly

         22  trained to use the very technical equipment or the

         23  ones who are trained are the ones who are not

         24  available.  So, I think, underlying all of this

         25  legislation, and I do not want to speak for my
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          2  colleague Council Member Sanders, but I certainly

          3  appreciate his leadership, underlying that and the

          4  motorcycle bills, and others that will be coming

          5  down, is an effort to provide a complimentary, if

          6  you will, enforcement mechanisms to the decibel

          7  requirement measurements so that where we have

          8  identified particular conduct or standards of

          9  conduct, which we know creates noise, or a

         10  particular measurement standard other than decibels,

         11  which we know should not be permissible, we want to

         12  prohibit that type of conduct, so where feasible, we

         13  can get at the cause of noise even if we do not have

         14  the very technical equipment and trained personnel

         15  available at two, three, four, five in the morning

         16  or the afternoon to take the measurements.

         17                 So, one, do you understand that

         18  approach, and two, as the Administration is re-

         19  writing the Noise Code, will you be adopting that

         20  approach so where possible you will be prescribing a

         21  noise generating conduct without the requirement

         22  where feasible of a decibel measurement?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

         24  understand clearly what you are articulating, and we

         25  have taken that into consideration.  I think you
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          2  will be satisfied.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  And,

          4  Council Member Gerson, may I add something to that?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Please.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  The

          7  current law has a provision making it a misdemeanor

          8  to create unreasonable noise, and that Section does

          9  not require a decibel reading, and it is used by

         10  police officers in appropriate circumstances.

         11                 I think we all agree that is

         12  certainly a more objective standard is using a

         13  decibel level when a sound meter is available, when

         14  the trained personnel are available but police

         15  officers always have the alternative of issuing a

         16  summons for unreasonable noise under the current

         17  law.  So, it is not a situation where somebody is

         18  left without a remedy if they do not have a sound

         19  meter.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And, thank

         21  you because you are leading me right to where I

         22  wanted to go.  Well, let me just, in part but how

         23  many unreasonable noise violations have been issued

         24  for noise generated by motorcycles?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  And not
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          2  overturned?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And, thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Say during the

          6  last calendar year, during calendar year '03.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,

          8  I do

          9  not--.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Both the police

         11  and DEP have the authority, so we will start with

         12  the police.  How many have the police issued in '03,

         13  unreasonable noise violations for motorcycle noise?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  What

         15  we have, we do not, unfortunately we do not capture

         16  in a database the reasons for the issuance of ECB

         17  summonses but we have issued in 2003, we issued 420

         18  VTL Violations for a noisy muffler but that is not

         19  necessarily for a motorcycle.  It is for any motor

         20  vehicle.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  420, is that

         22  in my district alone, or is that Citywide?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  No,

         24  no, Citywide.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Should be my
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          2  block.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

          4  Calendar year 2003.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, I just

          6  wanted to, so does the DEP have statistics as to how

          7  many unnecessary noise violations--.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Off

          9  the top of my head, Councilman, I think we had 90

         10  last year, and I think we were going at about 72, so

         11  we might be in that area, but again, you are pinning

         12  me to a number, and I do not, I will get back to

         13  you.  But, let me just also remind you, and I

         14  commend you for the work that you did prior to

         15  becoming a council member, I mean, we worked

         16  together, we heard you--.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  That is not

         18  fair, that is not fair.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  We

         20  heard you when you had a problem, again, you have

         21  been involved in the area of motorcycle noise for a

         22  long period of time which pre- dates your council

         23  seat, and we are willing to work with you, again,

         24  this is coming very, very shortly but, again, we are

         25  telling you that we are willing to work with you, as
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          2  you know.

          3                 If you have a specific problem, we

          4  work collaboratively with our partners at the police

          5  department, and we will address issues that any of

          6  you folks might have, and I think our record speaks

          7  for itself, and I am very proud of that.  I am very

          8  proud to have a partner as PD, in this effort, and

          9  we will be able to work with you as we wait for this

         10  Noise Code, which will be coming very soon, to

         11  address any issues you might have.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, and I

         13  appreciate that.              I am told that we have

         14  witnesses who have come in from out of town, and

         15  have flights to catch, so, I am going to reserve, I

         16  am going to conclude with one last question and

         17  comment, and then reserve the right to follow up

         18  but, my question to you Commissioner is, you seem to

         19  offer a hint of a recommendation as to how to

         20  proceed with motorcycles saying a more objective

         21  standard, such as accompanied with a specific

         22  measurement could be applied to improving regulation

         23  of motorcycle noise, as I read your testimony, is

         24  that something you could elaborate on now, talking

         25  about Commissioner Avaltroni, this is in your
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          2  testimony, or is that something in which we are

          3  going to wait for the release of the pending

          4  document?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  I

          6  think we both have the good fortune of knowing some

          7  of the people that have been involved in the

          8  process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Right.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  But,

         11  I think that we are speaking basically the same

         12  language and I think if you would wait for that, I

         13  would appreciate that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Okay, then my

         15  comment, my concluding comment, and again, in view

         16  of the time, I will dispense with further

         17  questioning, but I just need to comment two points.

         18  But, especially to the police department, we

         19  appreciate your rendition of state law but,

         20  certainly, we are clearly aware on the Council that

         21  our proposals do mirror current state law, for the

         22  most part, but what we do achieve in our proposals

         23  is a different deterrent structure in terms of fine

         24  scales, penalties, and the possibility, the

         25  possibility of impoundment, for which of course we
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          2  would make the technical, and incorporate the

          3  technical measures to comply with existing law.

          4                 So, I would like to, you have not

          5  addressed the differential in enforcement in your

          6  testimony, so I would like, perhaps, if the

          7  Department could look at us, and get back to us and

          8  tell us your analysis of the differential in

          9  enforcement provisions, and whether or not you feel

         10  our proposed enforcement provisions would make it

         11  easier.  Because that is our aim, is to make it

         12  easier for you and your officers to enforce the

         13  current law, that was really the intent.

         14                 So, if you could get back to us on

         15  that, I would appreciate continuing the dialogue,

         16  and the other very final comment, I am a little

         17  concerned when you king of say, minimize the

         18  importance of the bill, which gets at the use and

         19  possession of the "straight pipes" or the illicit

         20  equipment because that testimony comes right after

         21  you say that the language presents, of the VTL,

         22  which is the current state law, presents a high

         23  technical burden, et cetera.  So, the very purpose

         24  of our bill is to (a) facilitate better training, I

         25  think we will hear testimony as to training, but (b)
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          2  to avoid that technical burden by making certain

          3  conduct, sale, possession, et cetera, of equipment

          4  for which I can think of no other purpose than noise

          5  generation illegal, and again, that would make it

          6  easier for your officers to enforce the law.

          7                 So, again, in the interest of time,

          8  if we could continue the dialogue, and you could get

          9  back to us with further comment on why we should not

         10  target, both closing current loopholes in terms of

         11  just mere possession and sale and also increased

         12  penalties, and I will look forward to continuing

         13  that with you.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Well,

         15  Councilman, briefly, because the City law would

         16  replicate the state law

         17  exactly--.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, but,

         19  excuse me, it would not replicate it with respect to

         20  penalty or deterrence, would it?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, here is

         22  what we are going to do.  We really, I understand

         23  that it is just, we have got a mountain of witnesses

         24  that we have got to get out of this room.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, I
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          2  understand, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We are going to

          4  stop this here.  You guys understand each other, and

          5  so, you can talk afterwards or something, okay?  You

          6  guys are great, thanks so much for being here.

          7  Sorry for, sort of, cutting it up but we are really

          8  getting into a time crunch.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, no, I

         10  appreciate that, Mr. Chair, and this is a first

         11  hearing, so I look forward to continuing the

         12  dialogue on these and other points.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:  Thank

         16  you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you so

         18  much, Bob.  Thank you so much, Susan.  I appreciate

         19  your being here.

         20                 We are going to call up the next

         21  witness, Ed Moreland, who I believe came in from

         22  Ohio to be here, and Sean Mare (phonetic) both from

         23  the American Motorcycle Association, and it occurs

         24  to me, also, that when I introduced staff, I did not

         25  recognize the good work from our Finance Division,
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          2  Ms. McNeil, Veronica, are you here Veronica?  Okay,

          3  Veronica thank you for your good work as always.

          4                 In order to get the hearing done in

          5  the requisite period of time, thank you, everybody

          6  fortunately or unfortunately for people to be heard,

          7  we are going to put people on a three minute clock.

          8  I do not know as I could morally or ethically do

          9  that but with someone who came from like four states

         10  away to be here, so we are going to give some

         11  latitude to the representatives of the American

         12  Motorcycle Association, or the American Motorcyclist

         13  Association, who came from so far away.  But,

         14  everyone after that will be on a strict, three

         15  minute timetable.

         16                 Thanks very much for being here

         17  today.  Also, just to move things along, ordinarily

         18  we swear in our witnesses, we are going to dispense

         19  with that for, in order to save time, so please

         20  identify yourselves for the record, and proceed with

         21  your good testimony.  We will not hold you to the

         22  strict, three minutes because you came from so far

         23  away.  So, thanks for being here.

         24                 MR. MORELAND:  Thank you.  Well, I

         25  still swear to tell the truth, the whole truth, so.
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          2                 The American Motorcyclist Association

          3  (AMA) appreciates the opportunity to speak today

          4  before the Council.

          5                 We represent 275,000 motorcyclists

          6  around the country, 15,000 of which of our members

          7  ride and live in New York.

          8                 Again, my name is Ed Moreland.  I am

          9  Vice President of Government Relations for the

         10  American Motorcyclist Association. Our position on

         11  excessive noise is long and historied.  We have got

         12  a long history, in fact, of maintaining a strong

         13  position against excessive motorcycle noise.  We

         14  funded information and public relations campaigns in

         15  support of quiet motorcycle use, and were the first

         16  motorsports sanctioning body in the world, as a

         17  matter of fact, to regulate and reduce the sound

         18  level of racing vehicles.

         19                 The Association believes that few

         20  other factors contribute more to the

         21  misunderstanding and ongoing prejudice against the

         22  motorcycling community than excessively noisy

         23  motorcycles.

         24                 As the people that sat where I am

         25  sitting now, and the Council members eluded to
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          2  earlier, its the actions of a very small minority

          3  that bring us here today because most motorcyclists

          4  act in good faith, ride their motorcycles

          5  responsibly and quietly, live in neighborhoods, and

          6  do not want to be disturbed any more than anyone

          7  else in this room.

          8                 AMA has taken the issue very

          9  seriously, and earlier this year, actually in fact,

         10  May of last year, we convened a Motorcycle Sound

         11  Summit.  We invited experts from around the

         12  motorcycling community, individual riders, rider

         13  groups, manufacturers, aftermarket manufacturers,

         14  shop owners, insurance folks, law enforcement.  We

         15  had a Sergeant from Daytona County Sheriffs

         16  Department come up and join us, state legislators,

         17  and national agency officials to talk about the

         18  issue of sound, to come up with meaningful changes,

         19  ways that we can police ourselves in our own

         20  community.

         21                      As a follow up to the National

         22  Summit, a permanent working group has been

         23  established by AMA, that met in December to develop

         24  a National Agenda on Motorcycle Sound to identify

         25  strategies that would effectively help us reduce
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          2  motorcycle noise. We anticipate the project to be

          3  completed later this year, with a complete roll- out

          4  and plan, and cause of action for us to undertake as

          5  a community to help mitigate the effects of

          6  motorcycles on our streets.

          7                 With specific regard to the

          8  ordinances that were proposed here in this Council,

          9  we believe that many of them are redundant, as was

         10  expressed by the City and by the Police Department,

         11  in many cases, punitive to motorcyclists only.

         12   "Straight pipes" and exhaust designed with

         13  removable baffles, and excessive or unusual noise

         14  from motorcycles are already prohibited, as you know

         15  under Section 375- 31 (a) and (b), Section 382- 11,

         16  and Section 382- 12 of the State Vehicle and Traffic

         17  Law.

         18                 Furthermore, both state law and New

         19  York City law already provide for nearly identical

         20  in- operation sound level limits, testing

         21  procedures, and for motorcycles.

         22                 The existing penalties, as we view

         23  them, have never been enforced, and I think that is

         24  something that has come up over and over again

         25  today, as we have listened to the testimony of those

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  from the City, as well as from the Police, and you

          3  will hear that again, I am sure today, throughout

          4  the course of this hearing.

          5                 The fines as they are currently

          6  written in New York, allow for between $50 and $500,

          7  and/or imprisonment for up to twenty days for the

          8  first offense, for the very thing that we are

          9  talking about here.  I wish the City were still

         10  here, and the Police Department were still here to

         11  ask them how many times have they written a ticket

         12  for $500?  How many times has someone been to jail

         13  for twenty days?

         14                 I am certainly not advocating for

         15  sending motorcyclists to jail.  The point I am

         16  trying to make is, there are existing remedies for

         17  enforcement that have not been fully executed by the

         18  City, and by the Police Department.

         19                 Asking for additional penalties that

         20  would include forfeiture of a motorcycle or a

         21  vehicle is completely punitive to riders only.  I do

         22  not know that I have seen in City Code, forfeiture

         23  of automobiles for a bad muffler, so that is

         24  something that seems to me to be unfair.

         25                 Again, we believe that New York City
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          2  has the tools to accomplish their goals for

          3  excessively loud motorcycles.

          4                 As far as "straight pipes" are

          5  concerned, to the extent that the City desires to

          6  adopt the states existing regulations on the use of

          7   "straight pipes", we have no objections. However,

          8  AMA is strongly opposed, again, to the civil

          9  penalties, seizure, and impoundment provisions

         10  proposed in Intro. 53.  Rather, the penalties

         11  associated with the "straight pipe" violation should

         12  be consistent with those already provided for in

         13  Section 24- 269 (e) of Administrative Code.

         14                 With regard to Intro. Number 54,

         15  Intro. Number 54 would single motorcyclists out from

         16  other vehicle users, remove them from the objective

         17  sound level measurement procedure provided for in

         18  Section 24- 232 of the Administrative Code, and

         19  regulate them under a highly subjective

         20   "unreasonable noise" standard.  It has been the

         21  AMA's experience that subjective standards such as

         22  this just simply do not work.  They are difficult to

         23  enforce, and they make the City's job even more

         24  difficult by bringing in those who have been written

         25  summonses to defend themselves, and then they are
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          2  let off, and waste the tax payers time and money,

          3  the court systems time and money, as well.

          4                 Subjective standards accomplish

          5  little more than breeding resentment between the

          6  riding community and law enforcement, and New York

          7  City would be better served through enforcement of

          8  its existing noise standards, which are plentiful,

          9  in this case, and provide many opportunities for

         10  enforcement and reduction of unnecessarily loud

         11  motorcycle use.

         12                 With specific regard to Intro. Number

         13  55, operation of motorcycle without a muffler,

         14  again, state law already provides for the exhaust

         15  provisions being proposed.  To the extent the City

         16  desires to replicate, adopt existing state

         17  provisions, again, we have no specific objections,

         18  however, again, we do object to the penalty

         19  provisions as provided because they are punitive,

         20  and aimed only at motorcyclists.

         21                 In closing, I would just like to say

         22  that AMA recognizes the goals of New York City, and

         23  applaud the goals of New York City to improve the

         24  quality of life for their citizens through the

         25  reduction of noise.
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          2                 We oppose the notion of singling out

          3  motorcyclists from the rest of New York citizens,

          4  for the particularly harsh seizure and impoundment

          5  penalties suggested in these ordinances.           We

          6  believe the City and states existing Noise

          7  Standards, and accompanying penalty provisions, if

          8  enforced, are more than adequate tools to meet the

          9  challenges of excessive motorcycle noise in the

         10  City.

         11                 As I mentioned earlier, our

         12  Motorcycle Sound Working Group is now assembling the

         13  National Agenda on Motorcycle Sound, which we plan

         14  to available by the end of this year.  We look

         15  forward to making that available to the Committee,

         16  to the City, to the Police Department, whomever else

         17  would like to work with us on that in accomplishing

         18  the goals, the shared goals, of both the motorcycle

         19  riding community, and the City of New York itself. Again

         20  , thank you for inviting us here to testify, and we

         21  will answer any questions you have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you, Mr.

         23  Moreland.

         24                 I recognize Councilman Jennings for

         25  questions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 Mr. Moreland, I want to recognize

          5  your concern, and thank God our founding fathers

          6  said that we have a right to life, liberty, and

          7  property, and I am very concerned that, and I note

          8  here in Intro. 53 and 54 in particular, there is a

          9  call for forfeiture of your vehicles versus, I do

         10  not think there is any such bill now that

         11  forfeitures cars from making noise.  So I think that

         12  this Committee should really consider that, what are

         13  our actions regarding taking peoples property.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I am not a

         15  sponsor.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  I know, but

         17  you are the Chairman of the Committee, and I am

         18  talking to the Committee, what is left of us, those

         19  here, that before we act on these, if we could talk

         20  to the sponsors regarding this particular issue of

         21  taking any Americans, or anyone who is in our

         22  country's property from them for noise.  I think

         23  noise is a big problem.  We should certainly

         24  penalize people severely who violate our laws but, I

         25  think--.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Do you have any

          3  questions for the witnesses?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JENNINGS:  Taking

          5  property is I think is a very, very fundamental

          6  right, fundamental thing to our base of our country,

          7  is our Constitution.

          8                 That is only my comment, thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman. Thank you for joining us.

         10                 MR. MORELAND:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         12  Councilman Jennings.

         13                 Council Member Gerson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Again,

         15  because of the time frame that we are up against due

         16  to Council's schedule, I will be very brief.

         17                 I just want, Allan, before you leave,

         18  and I look forward to continuing the dialog, no I

         19  know.  We in all sort of situations confiscate

         20  equipment that is illegal, which is illegal to

         21  posses, it is not unheard of at all and the idea of

         22  confiscation, as a last resort, for repeated

         23  violations, when the matter happens over and over

         24  and over again, it is clearly intentional, was

         25  actually suggested to us, if not by the upper brass,

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  but by the patrol officers at the street as

          3  something that might make their enforcement lives

          4  easier, and certainly any confiscation would

          5  require, and I would certainly propound that it

          6  require adherence to full due process, and the

          7  normal laws and requirements involving the

          8  confiscation of illegal equipment, and we are

          9  talking about illegal equipment when this is

         10  purposely and intentionally tampered to inflict

         11  noise.  But, with that, and just one other point on

         12  the "unreasonable noise", that you site you heard

         13  the Police Department representative testify in

         14  another context to the fact that the City does, in

         15  fact, have an "unreasonable noise" standard on the

         16  books, or the equivalent, and what we propose in

         17  this legislation is just to clarify that the

         18  excessive noise generated by motorcycles would fall

         19  within the existing "unreasonable noise" standard

         20  because, as my colleague Council Member Sanders

         21  alluded to, many officers without specific

         22  statutory, regulatory direction are loathe to write

         23  the "unreasonable noise" standards.  That is why

         24  there is such a low measurement without, as I said,

         25  without direction because they will be overturned,
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          2  or because it is subjective, and that is why we put

          3  this in place.  It does not add a new standard, it

          4  just defines or clarifies definition of an existing

          5  standard to a situation that, in our community, is

          6  clearly unreasonable.

          7                 With that clarification, I do want to

          8  thank you for what you stated earlier as to your

          9  sensitivity to the issue of noise, and again, in the

         10  interest of time, I will just ask if you would be

         11  willing to continue the dialogue and to work with

         12  the community to refine this or other legislation,

         13  and other approaches to get at the noise issue in a

         14  way, again, that facilitates responsible

         15  motorcycling?

         16                 MR. MORELAND:  Absolutely, and may I

         17  take a moment to respond here to your comment?

         18                 The difference between the existing

         19  law, in my estimation, and AMA's estimation, the

         20  existing regulation for "unreasonable noise" is

         21  broad.

         22                 Your change or your amendment to it

         23  would focus attention, the police attention, civic

         24  attention, the City's attention, specifically on one

         25  user, one person in particular in the City, which
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          2  are motorcyclists.

          3                 So, again, without drawing attention

          4  to all the forms of "unreasonable noise" in the

          5  City, you will focus all attention on one user,

          6  which is the motorcyclists.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just for

          8  clarification, it is designed to draw that focus but

          9  there are other, in the current City system, there

         10  are other sources that are sealed out, motorcyclists

         11  would not be alone, and maybe what we do need to do,

         12  and maybe I have a feeling with the new Noise Code,

         13  we will see greater specificity to avoid this catch-

         14  22 that you have "unreasonable noise", which

         15  officers are very reluctant to enforce because it is

         16  very, very subjective but, so we may disagree on the

         17  focus on motorcycles because that is an intent but

         18  it is not an exclusive intent because we are

         19  focusing on other noise sources. So, if kind of,

         20  noise loves company, you should feel assured you are

         21  not alone.

         22                 MR. MORELAND:  Fair enough.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         24  thank you so much for coming so far to testify

         25  before us today.
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          2                 MR. MORELAND:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We appreciate

          4  the opportunity to hear your views, and of course,

          5  you have my word that we will give your views the

          6  strongest consideration, and we know where to get

          7  you for further questions.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 Next witness from the New York

         10  Motorcycle Coalition, David, looks like Mangeim, am

         11  I saying that correct?

         12                 MR. MANGEIM:  That is fine.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  David Mangeim,

         14  and unfortunately people are, people will have to be

         15  on the clock from here on, there is just no other

         16  way to hear everybody, and we will be, with that, it

         17  will be very tight.

         18                 So, please, you can give that to the

         19  Sergeant, and he will pass them out, just take your

         20  place at the witness stand, and the Sergeant will

         21  take your testimony.

         22                 Could I have the Sergeant set the

         23  clock at three minutes please?  And people should,

         24  are under no obligation to use the full three

         25  minutes, if your particular testimony is duplicative
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          2  of what was heard before.

          3                 Okay, Counsel to the Committee has

          4  informed me that with the amount of witnesses, and

          5  with the Councils schedule for the rest of the day,

          6  there is no way to hear everybody with a three

          7  minute time thing, so, unfortunately we are going to

          8  two minutes, so, I will re- direct the Sergeant to

          9  change it from what I just said from two to three,

         10  back from three to two, and this is not on T.V., so,

         11  I do not have to worry about--.

         12                 And people should understand that

         13  this is a first hearing on these issues.  This is

         14  certainly an issue which is not going to go away,

         15  people will have the opportunity to come back and

         16  give us the benefit of their views on subsequent

         17  occasions.

         18                 So, with that long prelude, I

         19  apologize for the time constraints.

         20                 Mr. Mangeim, I greatly appreciate

         21  your being here today, as well as everyone else who

         22  has been so patient.  It is not so easy to be

         23  patient and then be rushed when you yourself are on

         24  the witness stand but that is unfortunately the way

         25  it is.
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          2                 Thank you, Sir, for being here and

          3  please state your name for the record, and proceed

          4  with your good testimony.

          5                 MR. MANGEIM:  My name is David S.

          6  Mangeim.  I am the Executive Director of the New

          7  York Motorcycle Coalition, which is an independent,

          8  tax- exempt, non- profit corporation that deals with

          9  contentious issues such as this.

         10                 The people who represented the City

         11  previously quoted a great many laws at the state

         12  level.  These were all written by myself as the

         13  primary authority, with numerous people in the

         14  Assembly.  All of these laws received unanimous

         15  passage.  I have worked with Ms. De Costanzo, Mr.

         16  Colon, and other people. And, I have been with Allan

         17  Gerson as a consultant since 1998, and because we

         18  are limited on time, you have my statement to read,

         19  let me get to the point.

         20                 I have actually provided on the

         21  street, hands- on training for the Police Department

         22  of the City of New York in the First Precinct with,

         23  at that time, Billy Stiles (phonetic) who was the

         24  Community Affairs Officer.  And this training has

         25  come back to me over these years constantly telling
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          2  me that this has been tremendously effective because

          3  they are no longer pursuing people who do not

          4  deserve to be pursued.  That they are being able to

          5  provide an equitable and fair judgement of what is

          6  legal and what is not.

          7                 On that basis, my concern here is

          8  that I would endorse this legislation.  Last year, I

          9  spent two months, over several day, with your staff

         10  and sitting here as primary authority on this issue,

         11  I have been doing this, on this one issue alone for

         12  26 years, and I have offered, and I have offered it

         13  to the Giuiani Administration and to others to

         14  provide full- time training for the Police

         15  Department, so we could determine by observation, by

         16  audible testing, what is legal, what is not, how to

         17  determine these things. If, in fact, there is going

         18  to be an EPA Conference that is going to sit on

         19  potential violations of the law, again, it needs a

         20  full time individual who is fully qualified in terms

         21  of technical matters.  I do not think that there is

         22  anybody here, anybody in the City that I know of,

         23  and I have lived in this City 57 1/2 years, I do not

         24  think there is anybody in this City I know of that

         25  has my level of expertise and time involved.
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          2                 Questions?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          4  thank you, Mr. Mangeim.

          5                 I would just like to, I know we have

          6  Chris Manning from the Mayor's Office, and Shelly

          7  Stirken (phonetic) from DEP, who are both here.  I

          8  was glad that you were here to hear David's

          9  testimony, and to the extent that his 26 years of

         10  expertise on this issue could be helpful to the

         11  Administration in working through some of these

         12  issues.

         13                 I bring him to your attention, and

         14  perhaps he is a resource that might be helpful with

         15  his vast knowledge on this issue.

         16                 That was the only comment I had,

         17  other then thank you for your patience.

         18                 MR. MANGEIM:  I appreciate that, you

         19  are quite welcome.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I believe

         21  Councilman Gerson has a brief comment.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And question,

         23  ditto to what you said, Mr. Chair.

         24                 I want to thank the witness, you have

         25  been extraordinarily generous in your time and your
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          2  effort towards our goals, so, thank you on behalf of

          3  our community and our Council.

          4                 MR. MANGEIM:  I appreciate that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I urge the

          6  City to consult with this witness before it releases

          7  its Noise Code.

          8                 Just one question.  With proper

          9  training, would it be possible for enforcement

         10  agents to spot motorcycles with "straight pipes", or

         11  with other improper mufflers which generate noise,

         12  without actually, physically having to touch or move

         13  the motorcycle, assuming it is like parked on the

         14  street, for example?

         15                 MR. MANGEIM:  Absolutely.  I have

         16  been riding for 36 years, and I would not want

         17  somebody to manhandle my motorcycle, and I

         18  understand that many times people put tremendous

         19  amounts of money and effort into the appearance of

         20  the bike, often including these devices, which may

         21  not be legal according to the laws, as they

         22  currently exist at the state level.  Consideration

         23  has to, of course, be given to the value of their

         24  property.

         25                 Can one determine, through
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          2  observation, absolutely.

          3  No question about it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And, you have

          5  a pilot program in one of police precincts that has

          6  worked successfully?

          7                 MR. MANGEIM:  That is correct.  As

          8  you remember, Freida K. Bratlow (phonetic), who is

          9  one of constituents, and one of the great activists

         10  as an individual in this City, even last week we

         11  spoke on the phone and she said, "I still get

         12  adulatory comments from the First Precinct saying

         13  this has made their life so much easier, they are

         14  not making mistakes".

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  So, final

         16  question, shouldn't your expert recommendation of

         17  this be imported, and expanded to all police

         18  precincts?

         19                 MR. MANGEIM:  I have offered it, just

         20  historically, when I offered it to the Giuliani

         21  Administration--.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And to DEP,

         23  yes.

         24                 MR. MANGEIM:  Right, what happened

         25  was, I eventually got a letter from the 122nd
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          2  Precinct on Staten Island, where there is a

          3  Motorcycle Unit saying they know the laws.  I went

          4  over to speak to them, I said, "How come on a Sunday

          5  morning you will have two to three hundred guys

          6  dragging up and down in front of the precinct, and

          7  nobody ever gives a ticket for "straight pipes""?

          8  So, there is educational requirement.

          9                 They are hesitant because they do not

         10  know what to recognize.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 MR. MANGEIM:  You are welcome.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         15  thank you, Mr. Mangeim.

         16                 We, next we will have a panel, each

         17  person will have two minutes.  We are grouping

         18  people in panels, so maybe move it quickly, I do not

         19  know as though the people on the panel will directly

         20  have a relationship with one another, and people to

         21  the extent that your paneled with someone, this is

         22  not to indicate that people are of the same mind

         23  because they are on the same panel.

         24            Honi Klein of the Village Alliance BID,

         25  Lori Stone, Neighbors Against Noise, Frederick
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          2  Kress, Rosedale Civic Association, and Aaron

          3  Freidman (phonetic) from Transportation

          4  Alternatives.

          5                 Do we have four seats that we can put

          6  for them? Okay.  So Aaron is now testifying, we just

          7  have the three witnesses, if the Sergeant can make

          8  another seat available that would be great.

          9                 Okay, we are not swearing in

         10  witnesses, then whoever wishes to go first may do

         11  so, just state your name for the record and proceed

         12  with your testimony.

         13                 MS. KLEIN:  Yes, my name if Honi

         14  Klein.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, is the

         16  microphone on, like the light should be off, if the

         17  light is off, the microphone is on, it's on?  Okay,

         18  sorry about that, go ahead.

         19                 MS. KLEIN:  My name is Honi Klein.  I

         20  am the Executive Director of the Village Alliance

         21  Business Improvement District on 8th Street from 6th

         22  Avenue to 2nd Avenue and St. Marks Place.

         23                 I want to thank you, Mr. Chair, for

         24  having this, and also to thank, very much,

         25  Councilman Gerson, who was ahead of his time in
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          2  considering all the problems related to noise.

          3                 The Commissioner that was here from

          4  DEP, mentioned that this Mayor was very much

          5  interested, in that, people would enable people to

          6  proceed with business as one of the important bottom

          7  line results of getting rid of the motorcycle noise.

          8

          9                 I do not know how many people in

         10  here, other then the noise, have the pleasure and

         11  the distinction of having 60 to 80 motorcycles every

         12  single Friday, Saturday, and Sunday night, on one

         13  block.  That one block is between, on 8th Street,

         14  between 5th and 6th, and then of course, when they

         15  come and go, they do go down to Broadway, and they

         16  come back again.  It is beyond noise, it is beyond

         17   "straight pipes", it is beyond cut- outs in the

         18  mufflers, whatever they are called.  The point is

         19  that this has been a problem that I have been

         20  involved with for 15 years.  It is the number one

         21  item on the 6th Precinct calendar for the meeting in

         22  April on 8th Street.  I have employed the attention

         23  and services of the Traffic Enforcement people, we

         24  have paid detail officers, police officers on our

         25  street.  We have the 6th Precinct, it is not the
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          2  enforcement is not working, it is not the noise.

          3  These people, 60, 70, 80 bikes, they come and they

          4  park but you can imagine the noise when they come.

          5  You can imagine the noise, this goes on until 10,

          6  11, 12 o'clock every single night, Friday, Saturday,

          7  and Sunday.

          8                 I can be brief because that is a

          9  unique problem.  We have tried everything, and I am

         10  sorry to have to say it but I do not see how

         11  anything really in this legislation is going to help

         12  us, in terms of the noise meters, and I know

         13  Councilman Gerson will bear me out on this, that for

         14  many years in the Village, we did have the problem

         15  with cabarets and clubs.  By the time they come with

         16  the noise meter, if they find it and if it is

         17  working, and if there is a battery in it, the noise

         18  is gone.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         20                 MR. KLEIN:  Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Here is what we

         22  are going to do, I am going to stop you there but I

         23  am going to make a comment. I think one good thing

         24  that I predict is going to come out of your presence

         25  here today, Chris Manning from the Mayor's Office is
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          2  sitting right there and so, if you could give him

          3  all of your information, perhaps he can persuade

          4  some of the people in the Police Department, or

          5  whatever, to pay particular focus to your area.

          6  Maybe that will be of some help, so, I will ask

          7  Chris to take, just give him all of the details, all

          8  of the parameters, the street locations or whatever,

          9  and then I suspect that good things will happen.

         10  Okay.

         11                 MS. KLEIN:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, ma'am ,

         13  you would be Lori, okay, Lori Stone, please.

         14                 MS. STONE:  I am Lori Stone

         15  representing Neighbors Against N.O.I.S.E., a

         16  community- based organization formed in 1996 by

         17  people who live and work in Tribeca, who are

         18  affected by harmful noise and hazardous emissions

         19  from commercial buildings in the Tribeca West

         20  Historic District.

         21                 For more than eight years the primary

         22  focus of our group has been to reduce noise and

         23  emissions generated by 60 Hudson Street, also known

         24  as the Western Union Building, which is a major

         25  telecommunications hub.  Because 60 Hudson Street
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          2  was not designed to house the tremendous number of

          3  heat- generating computers and switching devices,

          4  that are now its primary occupants, we are

          5  victimized by the ever- growing number of air

          6  conditioners that cool this equipment and the diesel

          7  generators that provide backup power. The tremendous

          8  amount of noise emanating from this equipment

          9  products a roar, not unlike a jetliner revving at

         10  takeoff.

         11                 I have lived across the street from

         12  60 Hudson Street since 1980, at 84 Thomas.  This

         13  formally quiet block has become the neighborhood's

         14  noisiest.

         15                 I have been involved in meetings with

         16  the management of 60 Hudson street since 1985 to

         17  discuss the noise generated while the Western Union

         18  Building was being converted to the telecom hotel it

         19  is today.

         20                 At that time, the building was having

         21  carting companies compact garbage and building

         22  material on the street for eight hours a day, for

         23  about four years.  The noise in my home is deafening

         24  when the diesel generators are being tested and in

         25  use. There are many occasions when it is impossible
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          2  to hold a conversation, or speak on the phone in my

          3  office and space. I have not opened my windows for

          4  over ten years.  The last noise reading conducted by

          5  the New York City Department of Environmental

          6  Protection on February 3rd, 2003 in my home

          7  registered a sound level of 72 decibels.

          8                 Over the years, the building owners

          9  and companies in this building, which include most

         10  major telecommunications firms in the United States,

         11  have made and broken numerous promises to reduce the

         12  noise generated by equipment in this building.  We

         13  have found that without adequate laws to force

         14  owners and tenants to reduce overall building noise,

         15  60 Hudson Street has become noisier than ever.

         16                 Neighbors Against N.O.I.S.E. Is

         17  delighted to support Intro. Number 145, thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         19  thank you very much.

         20                 I see Chris Manning, also, taking

         21  copious notes regarding your testimony, as well.

         22                 Thank you very much for being here.

         23                 Frederick Kress.

         24                 MR. KRESS:  Good afternoon, I am here

         25  to talk to you about 145. I am representing Rosedale
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          2  Civic, Eastern Queens Alliance, which is a group of

          3  five civics in Eastern Queens, Queens Coalition for

          4  Parks.

          5                 We need relief.  We have a civilian

          6  patrol in our community that we get calls on a

          7  Friday, and a Saturday, two or three o'clock in the

          8  morning.  People are not calling up just

          9  complaining, people are in tears.  They cannot take

         10  the noise. People are having parties bringing

         11  commercial equipment, Bose speakers, six- foot high,

         12  two- foot wide.  We have no problem with people

         13  having a party for a communion, a graduation, or any

         14  kind of a social event.  We are not asking them to

         15  turn it off, turn it down.  The parties get so out

         16  of control with the noise, you hear the rumbling

         17  two, three, four blocks away.

         18                 Councilman Sanders was not kidding,

         19  he came out and he saw what is going on.  The cops

         20  tried with a Special Situation Unit, they cannot

         21  keep up with it, and when one neighbor sees it, they

         22  get away with it, the next guy does it.

         23                 We are, at this point, where people

         24  are either leaving the community, they are going out

         25  to live in other peoples houses for the weekend, or
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          2  taking a hotel room it is so bad.  It is not old

          3  people, it is young people with young families, and

          4  these are people now who are going to work maybe the

          5  next day, driving a truck, without a good nights

          6  sleep, dispensing medication.  I do not know about

          7  you, but I do not want someone who did not have a

          8  good nights sleep driving next to me, or giving me

          9  something I might need to save my life.

         10                 It is at the point now where the

         11  quality of life, it is beyond description.  But, I

         12  would like to invite the DEP Commissioner to come

         13  out on a Saturday, ride with our civilian patrol, go

         14  to four or five parties, see what it is like to be

         15  on the front line, and then when he comes back, I

         16  think he would have a very good understanding.

         17                 We cannot wait 30, 60, 90 days.  We

         18  need relief now.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  I

         20  also, Chris, if you could get the details and the

         21  circumstance over to Bob Avaltroni, maybe perhaps

         22  this is something that Bob can use.

         23                 The existing framework of laws that

         24  we have now to deal with this because it seems like

         25  we have stuff on the books now that should really
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          2  speak to that.

          3                 MR. KRESS:  It is just the

          4  enforcement, the cops cannot keep up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Again, and I am

          6  not the Councilman down there but between the

          7  Councilman's efforts, and we will also speak to

          8  James, as well, I am sure you speak to him all the

          9  time, but again, we will just like pile all of this

         10  on Chris as well, and, thank you Chris for your

         11  attention to this, and thank you, Mr. Kress, for

         12  coming forward.

         13                 Councilman Gerson has a micro-

         14  statement.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Very brief,

         16  micro, micro. Just, Mr. Chair, we need to know, the

         17  Committee needs to note that Ms. Stone's, and the

         18  Mayor's Office needs to be reminded, that Ms.

         19  Stone's situation results, in part, from the

         20  loophole in the current Noise Code, which allows the

         21  cumulative total of noise sources from within a

         22  building to exceed the current upper limits of the

         23  Noise Code, if the particular sources by themselves

         24  do not exceed it.  This has caused this neighbor to

         25  suffer, Chris or Mr. Manning, I made it clear to
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          2  your predecessor, as well as to Commissioner Ward

          3  that the upcoming Noise Code must close that

          4  loophole, must measure a building in an area

          5  cumulatively, or else, as far as I am concerned, the

          6  Noise Code will be dead on arrival, and totally

          7  unacceptable, so, I expect that this loophole will

          8  be closed in the upcoming Noise Code.  In the

          9  meantime, we will press ahead with enforcement, and

         10  just, Ms. Klein, we will continue to work but if

         11  this legislation was passed, and if police officers

         12  in your precinct, which is not the first to receive

         13  David's training, then the officers would be able to

         14  visually inspect all of those parked motorcycles,

         15  see which have the tampered engines or mufflers,

         16  which generate the noise, and either penalize or

         17  even impound those, and that would perhaps get great

         18  deterrent to prevent the situation that exists now

         19  on 8th Street.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         21  Council Member Gerson.

         22                 We are joined by Oliver Koppell, a

         23  valued member of this Committee from the Bronx.

         24                 Thank you very much for being here

         25  Council Member Koppell.
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          2                 The next panel, John Gleason of the

          3  New York City Ironworkers, Susan Buck, AMA, District

          4  34, Fred Garcia representing Harley- Davidson, and

          5  Donna Larham, American Bikers.

          6                 Thank you all for being here, thank

          7  you for being patient, thank you for agreeing, so

          8  gracefully, to be rushed in your testimony, sorry

          9  about that.

         10                 I guess starting from this side, and

         11  working this way, Mr. Garcia.  Please state your

         12  name for the record, and proceed with your

         13  testimony.

         14                 MR. GARCIA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         15  Council members.

         16                 My name if Fred Garcia, and I am the

         17  President of Logos Consulting Group, a consulting

         18  firm based in New York City that advises companies

         19  on public policy issues.  I am also a professor of

         20  management at New York University.

         21                 I am here today on behalf of my

         22  client, the Harley- Davidson Motor Company.

         23                 Harley-Davidson is the leading U.S.

         24  Manufacturer of heavy-weight motorcycles.

         25  Harley-Davidson, last year, completed its 100th year
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          2  in business, and was proud to begin its 100th

          3  anniversary ride home, just a few blocks from this

          4  Chamber at the New York Stock Exchange.

          5                 The companies executives rode through

          6  the streets of New York, and began a journey to

          7  Washington, D. C., and then onward to their home

          8  city of Milwaukee, Wisconsin.  There thousands of

          9  motorcyclists and the community in Milwaukee

         10  celebrated Harley Davidson's 100th birthday.

         11                 As part of the planning for its 100th

         12  Anniversary, Harley- Davidson recognized that the

         13  communities through which Harley- Davidson

         14  enthusiasts would ride have concerns about the

         15  sounds generated by the motorcycles.  And the

         16  company knows that what might sound like music to

         17  the ears of its riders may sound like something

         18  altogether different to others.

         19                 As a result, the company has

         20  undertaken an aggressive campaign to communicate

         21  with its dealerships and riders about how their

         22  riding practices affect others.

         23                 Harley- Davidson encourages

         24  responsible and considerate riding practices,

         25  especially in residential areas. Harley- Davidson
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          2  encourages all riders to comply with local noise

          3  ordinances.

          4                 Harley- Davidson is communicating

          5  with riders, dealers, employees and other groups to

          6  employ respectful riding practices.

          7                 Further, Harley- Davidson recommends

          8  that employees not install "straight pipes" on their

          9  personal motorcycles, and that they set a good

         10  example for other riders.  And, Harley Davidson does

         11  not manufacture "straight pipes".

         12                 Harley- Davidson is committed to

         13  remaining in dialog with this Committee, as you do

         14  your important work.

         15                 Harley- Davidson does have two

         16  immediate concerns.           The first has to do

         17  with the provision of the proposed legislation to

         18  seize motorcycles that are in violation of noise

         19  standards.  Harley- Davidson believes that the

         20  proposed fines and penalties are overly severe and

         21  should be given additional consideration.

         22                 The second concern is the provision

         23  that would prohibit motorcycles with an exhaust

         24  system that is louder than the original system that

         25  was installed on the motorcycle.
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          2                 The concern is about the comparison

          3  between the current and the previous exhaust system.

          4    The language of the provision would suggest that a

          5  motorcycle could be in violation if its exhaust

          6  system was louder than the prior system, even if the

          7  new system is still in full compliance with all

          8  existing federal and state standards.  That could

          9  result in motorcycles that are not as noisy as

         10  others being found to be in violation of the law,

         11  whereas, the others would not be.

         12                 It is not clear how such a

         13  determination between a current and previous exhaust

         14  system could be made by the police officers.

         15                 Given the time limits, I thank you

         16  for your time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         18  thank you very much for being here.

         19                 MS. BUCK:  My name is Susan Buck, I

         20  represent the motorcyclists of AMA District 34,

         21  which is several thousand motorcyclists in the Metro

         22  area.

         23                 I am not as well versed on the state

         24  law and the proposed legislation, but I do not a

         25  great deal about the federal law.
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          2                 Title 40 of the Federal Code has

          3  plainly prohibited the manufacturers, distribution

          4  or installation of modifications that increase the

          5  volume of exhaust systems for nearly 25 years.

          6  Federal funding for enforcement was cut around then,

          7  and the reverberations have been growing ever since.

          8

          9                 Law enforcement is now pursuing the

         10  end user, the street rider, all over the country,

         11  and it is clearly failing.  It is no small secret

         12  that law enforcement officers who ride motorcycles

         13  often modify their motorcycles to make them louder,

         14  as often as any other rider

         15                 Hundreds of automotive and motorcycle

         16  shops, employing thousands of people, which are

         17  licensed by the Department of Consumer Affairs, and

         18  the Department of Motor Vehicles, have been selling

         19  and installing after market exhaust systems for over

         20  20 years, clearly flouting the law.  Permanent

         21  labeling is required on equipment regulated for off-

         22  road or competition use, but is usually marked only

         23  on packaging, especially on after market equipment

         24  designed for street bikes to make them louder.  New

         25  regulations redundant to old one are pointless
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          2  without enforcement that starts at the industry

          3  level and follows through to the retail level.

          4                 I would like to know why this has not

          5  been addressed anywhere in this City at all in this

          6  last ten years, that this problem has become so

          7  exacerbated.

          8                 A child's ball, thrown against an

          9  automobile, will set off a car alarm as easily as a

         10  motorcycle with "straight pipes" passing through the

         11  street, and ear plugs are often used by riders for

         12  the wind noise, not for the exhaust noise, so the

         13   "plainly audible" standard that you have described

         14  is completely unenforceable, as it has been for all

         15  of these years, and I am going to echo everything

         16  that the AMA people said before.

         17                 Thank you for your time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         19  thank you very much.  Sir.

         20                 MR. LANHAM:  My name is Donald

         21  Lanham.  I am the Assistant Legislative Coordinator

         22  for ABATE of New York.  My statements are going to,

         23  pretty much, echo what has been said by the AMA, and

         24  many others here today but I will try and read as

         25  much as I can in the time allotted.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for this

          3  opportunity.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

          5                 MR. LANHAM:  Excessive noise is a

          6  problem that we can all agree needs to be addressed.

          7    Admittedly, loud motorcycles are a contributing

          8  factor in noise pollution, but they are only one of

          9  the many daily activities that contribute to noise

         10  pollution. Bill Int. Numbers 53, 54, and 55 unfairly

         11  target motorcycles as major noise contributors.

         12  Noise ordinances and penalties should be imposed

         13  equally upon all sources of noise.  It is

         14  discriminatory to impose specific limits and

         15  penalties on only one noise source instead of

         16  imposing the same limits and penalties on all

         17  sources of noise.

         18                 The Vehicle and Traffic Law of New

         19  York State already addresses all of the issues

         20  addressed by these new bills. There are, however,

         21  two major distinctions between the proposed bills

         22  and existing laws that give cause for concern with

         23  the proposed bills.

         24                 New York State Law clearly defines

         25  the allowable noise level limit for motorcycles and
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          2  the proper method for testing in subsection 386,

          3  paragraph 3 (c).

          4                 The proposed bills fail to specify

          5  such limits, instead referring to unreasonable or

          6  excessive noise.  Legislation that does not clearly

          7  define limits and procedures for determining

          8  compliance place that responsibility on law

          9  enforcement officers, who are prone to human error

         10  and prejudices.  The legislation is too vague to be

         11  enforced in an equitable manner.

         12                 The other major difference between

         13  the existing State Law and the proposed legislation

         14  is the severity of the penalties imposed on

         15  violators.  Violators of the current State Law are

         16  charges with either a traffic or equipment violation

         17  and fined up to $150 for a first offense.

         18                 Under the proposed legislation,

         19  violators would be charged with a misdemeanor, fined

         20  in excess of $400, and subject to the possible

         21  seizure of their motorcycle.

         22                 This penalty is far to extreme for

         23  violation of a noise ordinance.

         24                 To put it in perspective, if I were

         25  riding a motorcycle that was unlawfully equipped
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          2  with "straight pipes", I would have a misdemeanor

          3  conviction on my record, pay fines between $400 and

          4  $800, and possibly have my vehicle seized.

          5                 However, if a motorist were to run a

          6  red light or a stop sign and strike me, severely

          7  injuring me on my vehicle, he would only be subject

          8  to a $100 fine.  It would be a miscarriage of

          9  justice if we were to pass laws that place a higher

         10  value on quality of life issues than on the safety

         11  of its citizens.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         13  thank you very much for your statement.

         14                 Yes, Sir.

         15                 MR. GLEASON:  Yes, I am John Gleason,

         16  Vice President of Local 580's Motorcycle Club.

         17                 I would like to put a face on

         18  somebody, Murray do you want to stand up?  Murray

         19  lost his leg last year on a motorcycle because

         20  somebody in a car hit him, and he did not see him.

         21  Sometimes, I am not an advocate of "straight pipes"

         22  but maybe if his pipes were a little bit louder

         23  someone might have seen him.

         24                 The club I belong to, we were the

         25  first ones down at Ground Zero.  A lot of my members
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          2  are Vietnam veterans.  I do not want these guys to

          3  be singled out.  I mean, I am reading here where it

          4  says, "no person himself should permit an animal,

          5  including a bird", I mean how ridiculous are we

          6  going to get with our laws and our freedom?  Now

          7  they are trying to favorite radio disk jockey,

          8  Howard Stern, off the air because he is obscene.  I

          9  mean, it is that ten percent of the people who are

         10  making life miserable for us.  I have not had a

         11  parking ticket in 15 years.  Anybody tries to tow my

         12  bike, my motorcycle, I paid $25,000 for it, you

         13  better have the proper equipment to tow it.

         14                 That is all I have to say, I do not

         15  want us to be singled out as bad people because we

         16  are not.  We go to all the Toys for Tot runs, we

         17  support all the police rallies, we support the

         18  police, we are very charitable people, we are very

         19  giving people.

         20                 MS. BUCK:  Over $5 million in the

         21  last year.  Over $5 million was donated to charity

         22  by motorcycle groups in the last year, and that only

         23  represents those sanctioned by the AMA, which only

         24  represents five percent.  The actual figure would be

         25  four or five times that much.
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          2                 MR. GLEASON:  Any time you want to

          3  inspect my clubs pipes, most of them are law abiding

          4  citizens.  So, please do not single out motorcycles.

          5    Go after that ten percent.

          6                 Thank you, Sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

          8  Councilman Gerson has a brief comment.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I really

         10  appreciate all of your testimony, your taking the

         11  time, if I could just dispel or clarify two points.

         12                 One is, when it comes to noise, we

         13  are really not singling out motorcycle noise over

         14  other sources.

         15                 This hearing focuses on motorcycle

         16  noise but not to long ago, the was a Transportation

         17  Committee hearing which focused on noise from those

         18  metal plates installed in the streets, when they are

         19  not installed properly, they make horrendous noise.

         20                 You heard me address the loophole in

         21  this Noise Code involving Ms. Stone's building in

         22  terms of the cumulative noise sources, so, for legal

         23  and administrative reasons, we are kind of

         24  approaching this methodically, in the hope that the

         25  Administration will have an all comprehensive Code
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          2  but we are trying to get at particulars involving

          3  different sources but no one should feel that we are

          4  only concerned with motorcycle noise, far from it.

          5                 The other point, but we do need to be

          6  concerned with motorcycle noise among other sources,

          7  and the other point is the last witnesses, and

          8  forgive me I do not have your card in front of me

          9  with your name, but your point is very well taken,

         10  we recognize it is that ten percent, it may even be

         11  less, and we certainly do want to work with you and

         12  the industry, to find ways, and that is the case in

         13  most violations of Administrative Code provisions,

         14  to find ways of getting at the ten percent, which

         15  makes folks life miserable but which allows you all

         16  who are responsible to pursue your activity in a

         17  safe way, and certainly, I commit to you, to working

         18  with you to achieve that goal.

         19                 MR. GLEASON:  I just want to respond.

         20    I just do not think that it is fair that our

         21  penalties are a little bit stiffer. Are you going to

         22  confiscate the trucks, the cars, and the birds too?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I am not sure

         24  about the birds, I am not responsible for the birds

         25  point but I think that was already in it.  But,
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          2  actually, there is provision about trucks, and truck

          3  noise, so again, we want consistency, we want to get

          4  at all noise sources.

          5                 MS. BUCK:  So, why haven't you

          6  addressed this on the manufacturing and retail

          7  level?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I think your

          9  point is very well taken, and the idea of addressing

         10  the sales, and we will.

         11                 MS. BUCK:  It has been plainly

         12  illegal for over 25 years.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

         14  thank you.

         15                 We have two more panels.

         16                 I am going to be turning over the

         17  gavel to Council Member Oliver Koppell from the

         18  Bronx, a valued member of this Committee, also

         19  served as the Chairman of the Committee on

         20  Environmental Conservation of the New York State

         21  Assembly for many years, and a former New York State

         22  Attorney General, so, this Committee will be in

         23  very, very good hands for the next ten witnesses,

         24  and so, I thank Council Member Koppell for pinch

         25  hitting.  I have another hearing that I have to go
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          2  to.

          3                 I thank Council Member Gerson for

          4  staying the distance with us, and for his leadership

          5  on this issue.

          6                 Thank you all very much, and Council

          7  Member Koppell will carry on for me.

          8                 Thank you Oliver.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  All

         10  right, the next to testify, I hope I can say the

         11  names appropriately, Sante Scardillo, is that

         12  individual here?  Oh good, okay, Charles Wolf, Ian

         13  Dutton, and Mary Elaine Monti.

         14                 You want to go in that order, is that

         15  all right with everybody?  So, Sante is first.

         16                 MR. SCARDILLO:  Thank you, and good

         17  afternoon ladies and gentlemen.

         18                 I am Sante Scardillo from the Little

         19  Italy Neighbors Association.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Did you

         21  have a written statement?

         22                 MR. SCARDILLO:  Yes, I do, and I am

         23  going to

         24  read it.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Do you
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          2  have copies,

          3  or no?

          4                 MR. SCARDILLO:  Yes, I will have a

          5  copy for the Committee as soon as I am done reading

          6  it.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay.

          8  All right, go ahead.

          9                 MR. SCARDILLO:  I was misinformed, I

         10  did not understand the scope of the changes that

         11  were being proposed, and I would like to comment

         12  regarding Intro. 145 before I go into 53, 54, and

         13  55.  And, I am going to file an amended statement

         14  with the Committee concerning this.

         15                 I very much welcome the "plainly

         16  audible" Noise Standard, and I would like to make a

         17  suggestion as to Paragraph 24, 229, that noise

         18  sensitive zones should also include backyard

         19  gardens, surrounded by residential buildings.  This

         20  is a major problem in our community.  Especially

         21  when it comes to restaurants and bars and it should

         22  be addressed.  Alan promised a law concerning this,

         23  and maybe this is a good place to start with this

         24  because the noise is the main issue.

         25                 Now, to go to the motorcycles,
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          2  specifically, this is my statement.

          3                 The Little Italy Neighbors

          4  Association supports the current proposal to reduce

          5  motorcycle noises that is being studied by the

          6  Council.

          7                 Our neighborhood, more than the rest

          8  of the City, is impacted by this scourge when,

          9  yearly, we get invaded by thousands of loud

         10  motorcycles for the tri-state area, for a carnival

         11  named, demeaningly for our community, the "garlic

         12  run".  The name implies the worst racial stereotype,

         13  imagine a "watermelon run" in Central Harlem, but

         14  more than just the insult, the community objects to

         15  the added injury of inviting a concentration of

         16  noisy machines mounted by people whose outmoded idea

         17  of a display of virility, already stigmatized and

         18  made obsolete in 1969 by the Academy Award winning

         19  movie "Easy Rider", entails revving up engines and

         20  making themselves unwelcome to an entire community,

         21  whose streets are closed to regular traffic, to

         22  allow these outsiders to take over our streets.

         23                 While welcome, the measure being

         24  studied by the Council will not improve the life of

         25  out community, and of the City at large, unless it
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          2  is provided with enforcement brawn.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  We are

          4  going to have to ask you to sum up, okay, just a

          5  couple of more sentences.

          6                 MR. SCARDILLO:  Yes, okay, well

          7  basically, what I am saying is that the enforcement

          8  agency should be working in concert with the

          9  community because many, many riders are also police

         10  officers, and that is where the problem starts.

         11  They have police discretion.  I took the Civilian

         12  Academy Course, at the behest of the police force,

         13  to have a better relationship with our community,

         14  and I saw what is on the manuals, and they have

         15  discretion on what to enforce and how to enforce it,

         16  so a little better work should be done in terms of

         17  the police force understanding that, although they

         18  are a para- military organization, they work in

         19  concert and in the service of a civilian society.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay,

         21  thank you very much.

         22                 MR. SCARDILLO:  Thank you.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  The next

         24  is Charles Wolf.

         25                 MR. WOLF:  Hi, my name is Charles
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          2  Wolf.  I am a resident of Greenwich Village, right

          3  around the corner from where Council member Alan

          4  Gerson lives.

          5                 I have lived, my balcony overhangs

          6  Bleeker Street on the corner of Thompson and

          7  Bleeker, and I have lived there for 25 years.  I

          8  also happen to be the Co-Chairman of the Bleeker

          9  area Merchants and Residents Association but today,

         10  I speak for myself and not for the organization as a

         11  whole because we have not met on the issue.

         12                 The idea of motorcyclists causing

         13  noise is not the problem.  The idea of some

         14  motorcyclists causing noise is the problem.

         15                 I remember one night, back in my

         16  single days, where there were about a dozen

         17  motorcycles parked directly underneath my window,

         18  and about 1:30/2:00 o'clock in the morning, or maybe

         19  it was 2:30, they all started up and they sat there

         20  revving their engines because noise is oftentimes

         21  equated with having fun.  There is something about

         22  the more noise you have, the more of a macho man you

         23  are.  Noise has to do with clubs.  Noise has to do

         24  with motorcycles.  Noise has to do with cars.  Noise

         25  has to do with parties and music.  In this situation
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          2  though, motorcycles fall within a specific

          3  definition, not a definition but a specific

          4  characteristic, in that, a lot of them can clump

          5  themselves together at a moments notice, like one

          6  bee you do not hear, a swarm of bees you hear

          7  coming.  And, so, if the motorcyclists who are law

          8  abiding are uncomfortable with the fact that some of

          9  their "bad apple" brethren do this, well then, "if

         10  the shoe fits, wear it".           We have got a

         11  problem, we need to deal with it.  Our Police

         12  Department says they can write the tickets for them,

         13  but it gets thrown out in court, and I do not know

         14  if the law addressed this issue.  It gets thrown out

         15  in court because the judge accepts a repair ticket

         16  in which they just swap one muffler out for the

         17  other one, and that is, it might be as simple as

         18  that.  We have a problem, we have a club noise

         19  problem, which Alan knows about.  The Mayor's

         20  smoking law has created a backyard garden law, and I

         21  do not know if future hearing might be focused on

         22  those kind of things but as you deal with noise,

         23  remember, deal with the cord end of it.  It would be

         24  like the drug dealer situation, revolving door,

         25  okay, deal with that and also remember that the
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          2  lower the frequency of the noise, meaning a low

          3  frequency, as opposed to the high

          4  frequency--.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay, I

          6  am going to have to ask you to sum up.

          7                 MR. WOLF:  Fine, the lower frequency

          8  noise travels much further, and it travels through

          9  solid walls and closed windows.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

         12  you for your statement.  I might note that you have

         13  the right person here, in your Councilman, Alan

         14  Gerson, who is hearing all of this, and enforcement

         15  begins at the local precinct level, and I am sure

         16  there will be some discussion of that.

         17                 We have been joined by Councilman

         18  Jose Serrano from the Bronx.  Welcome, I know you

         19  were Chairing another hearing, that is way you are

         20  late.  Thank you for coming.

         21                 Next is Mary Elaine Monti.

         22                 MS. MONTI:  Thank you.  My name is

         23  Mary Elaine Monti, and I live, I have lived on the

         24  corner of 5th Avenue and West 8th Street for over 25

         25  years.  I live on the fifth floor of the building,
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          2  and my windows face West 8th Street.

          3                 Noise from motorcycles is a major

          4  problem on my block, and one that has grown

          5  significantly in the last few years. When a notice

          6  was posted last summer, in July, to form a block

          7  association, the residents who met had one common

          8  complaint, motorcycle noise.  At the October meeting

          9  of our newly formed block association, we decided to

         10  document the dates and times when noise from

         11  motorcycles disrupted our lives.  Although it was

         12  October, and we were near the end of the motorcycle

         13  season, which reaches its peak during the warmer

         14  months, we thought it would be helpful for law

         15  enforcement.

         16                 It was a very warm night in late

         17  October last year when motorcycles roared down 8th

         18  Street, well past midnight, I noted the time, the

         19  date, and the number of motorcycles.  I just cannot

         20  find the record.

         21                 However, this weekend, the last

         22  weekend in February, a winter month, it was

         23  unseasonably warm.  When I was at home, I was able

         24  to document motorcycle activity from the fifth

         25  floor. Please remember, this is not the height of
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          2  motorcycle season. Also, I did not sit at the

          3  window, I got up when I heard a motorcycle.

          4  Saturday, 6:30 p.m., two motorcycles, very loud,

          5  7:45, 5 motorcycles, very loud, 8:15, six

          6  motorcycles, not too loud, 8:30, one motorcycle,

          7  loud, 9:30 p.m., ten motorcycles, loud, 3:30 p.m.,

          8  one motorcycle, very loud, 4:15, two motorcycles,

          9  not loud, 4:20, it goes on and on, and I know my

         10  time is running out.

         11                 I urge you to vote in favor of 53,

         12  54, and 55.  We residents of Greenwich Village are a

         13  tolerant group but this motorcycle noise is

         14  intolerable, and I wish the Assistant Commissioner

         15  were here.  When she spoke about being able to catch

         16  motorcycle noise makers, they could camp out in my

         17  apartment, and radio at the next light, and ticket

         18  the offenders.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

         21  you very much, staying within the time limit too.

         22                 Ian Dutton.

         23                 MR. DUTTON:  Yes, I take it,

         24  actually, these are some of my neighbors, I have not

         25  met before because I am in a very similar area on
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          2  Sullivan Street, right on the SoHo/Greenwich Village

          3  boundary, and I will cut short my remarks because I

          4  think the effects, the impact, the detrimental

          5  effects of the noise are well studied and have been

          6  documented a lot during our speaking.

          7                 One thing I am kind of disturbed by

          8  is that--.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Just let

         10  me interrupt you, state your name so that it is on

         11  the recording please.

         12                 MR. DUTTON:  Sure, it is Ian Dutton.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 MR. DUTTON:  And, one thing that I

         16  think has been missing is that the conduct of the

         17  motorcycles that we are talking about is a voluntary

         18  conduct, and for that reason, I think that changes

         19  the nature.

         20                 It is not that we are talking about,

         21  for example, a motor vehicle that may have a

         22  defective muffler, and someone who is traveling to

         23  get it fixed, or something of that nature.  We are

         24  singling out the motorcycles for that reason because

         25  this is a voluntary action, and I guess there is a
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          2  legal principle that can be summed up, "my right to

          3  swing my fist ends at your nose", and unfortunately,

          4  they are impinging on all of our common rights,

          5  through their voluntary actions.

          6                 So, this does represent a choice. I

          7  was kind of disturbed to hear the NYPD handwringing

          8  because they are constantly telling us that their

          9  problem, currently, is enforcing the current laws,

         10  and yet, they came up here to testify that the

         11  current laws are sufficient, and going further than

         12  that would be redundant. So, I think, as far as my

         13  impression is that the NYPD kind of has both sides

         14  of the case, and I also find 400- some tickets to be

         15  laughable in the whole City, when really, in a

         16  weekend, I think sitting in our neighborhood, at

         17  least, you could easily in one weekend issue that

         18  many summonses.

         19                 Anyway, some of the other statements

         20  that I heard as far as right to property, when you

         21  are talking about a voluntary illegal use of your

         22  property, I do not think you have the same right to

         23  property that someone may have of just owning

         24  anything else, and the idea of a child's ball

         25  setting off car alarms as easily as motorcycles, I
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          2  believe it is true, there is a lot of other things

          3  that would set off car alarms, just as easy as a

          4  motorcycle but, the point is, that they do not.  In

          5  my neighborhood at least, I have never seen a child

          6  set off a car alarm and I can tell you, on a daily

          7  basis that car alarms are set off by the motorcycle

          8  noise.

          9                 Thank you very much, Alan Gerson, for

         10  your leadership on the issue.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

         12  you all for your testimonies.

         13                 Do my colleagues have any questions?

         14  Alan, go ahead.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Yes, just

         16  really a comment. Thank you all for coming out to

         17  testify.

         18                 I actually want to address my comment

         19  to Mr. Manning from the Mayor's Office.  You have

         20  been the subject of a lot of comment here but and

         21  actually to the industry and the cycle clubs. I hope

         22  you will really hear the concern and the anguish,

         23  and I am, Ms. Monti, I applaud your record keeping.

         24                 I have said in the past, that

         25  elsewhere, with the spring, the birds return and in
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          2  our neck of the woods, springtime is marked by the

          3  return of the noisy cyclists.  It would be great if

          4  we could be marked by the return of not so noisy

          5  cyclists, and that is really what we are after.

          6                 So, Chris, we are on a first name

          7  basis, please take the message back that this new

          8  Noise Code that is being worked on, has to include

          9  serious measures, at the source, in addition to the

         10  other sources.  But, each source, as your

         11  Commissioners testified, raised particular issues,

         12  and the Code needs to be consistent but specific

         13  enough to address the particulars of each noise

         14  source. And, just for clarification sake, there

         15  actually is an additional motorcycle related piece

         16  of legislation that was referred to the Public

         17  Safety Committee, not to this Environmental

         18  Committee, with a hearing yet to happen under

         19  Council Member Vallone, but he has been very

         20  supportive.  And, that would specifically target and

         21  prescribe what is called "exhibitionist motorcycle

         22  behavior", which Mr. Wolf, is the in- place revving,

         23  the other noisy conduct but really serves no purpose

         24  but to create noise, and again, that is targeting

         25  the conduct, so you do not have to have the
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          2  measurements, which sometimes are hard to do on the

          3  spot.

          4                 So, we are going to follow up with

          5  that, as well as the courtyards which is also a

          6  separate bill.

          7                 Thank you all, thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

          9  you for coming.

         10                 The next panel, Zella Jones, Carol

         11  Wilson, Cormac Flynn, and Jack Eppler.  Okay, are we

         12  all here?  Jack Eppler left, okay.

         13                 I will call in that order, when you

         14  start your statement, please mention your name and

         15  if you represent a group, please mention the group.

         16                 So, the first is Zella Jones.

         17                 MS. JONES:  Hello, my name is Zella

         18  Jones, I am Chair of the NoHo Neighborhood

         19  Association.  I am speaking as a resident at the

         20  moment since we also have not had a chance to

         21  assemble the neighborhood association for an

         22  official statement on this subject.  Although, one

         23  will be forthcoming because it is a very important

         24  issue to NoHo.

         25                 NoHo is bordered by Bowery on the
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          2  east, by Mercer Street on the west, by Houston

          3  Street on the south, and Astor Place on the north.

          4  I am sure in just stating those cross- streets, one

          5  has a very good idea of how many motorcycles one

          6  would find on a weekend, summer or winter, that are

          7  surrounding our neighborhood, and the amount of

          8  chaos that is often provided.

          9                 It is also the location of clubs, and

         10  a great density of traffic evenings and weekends,

         11  and quite a lot of parked cars from out of state

         12  over the weekend for people who are visiting in

         13  clubs.  I mention this because even one loud

         14  motorcycle crossing Bleeker Street, which is very,

         15  very frequent, we have already documented it from

         16  the west.  I can only tell you that it is just as

         17  much, if not more, on the east as they are

         18  approaching the motorcycle clubs off Bowery, sets

         19  off series of car alarms.  We are frequently woken

         20  at two, and three, and four o'clock in the morning

         21  by car alarms set off by motorcycles that are

         22  extremely loud, that cannot be shut off because, of

         23  course, one cannot find the owner. The owners

         24  address, their phone number is not local.  We sit

         25  there for hours waiting for the police to turn off
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          2  the car alarms resulting from this.

          3                 So, any legislation that can minimize

          4  these terribly deleterious effects on our

          5  neighborhood, we welcome, and I commend you for the

          6  effort.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  I just

          9  might mention that there is legislation.  The car

         10  alarms are supposed to turn themselves off, I think,

         11  after three minutes, so, if they are not doing that,

         12  they are violating the law.

         13                 MS. JONES:  There may be more room

         14  for more violations here, I really do not know but I

         15  really swear to you that law enforcement has a very

         16  hard time turning these illegal alarms, from out of

         17  state, off.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well,

         19  that may be a good suggestion for new legislation,

         20  Alan because we have some proposals --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I will

         22  co-sponsor it with you.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  We do

         24  have, you should know, that there are some members

         25  of the Council, and I frankly, have not made up my
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          2  own mind on this yet, who recommend that car alarms

          3  be prohibited altogether.

          4                 I hear what you are saying but as it

          5  is now, just so you know, it is the law that they

          6  are supposed to go off, I believe it is three

          7  minutes, it is a state law, but perhaps there is

          8  some way we could enforce it better, also a City

          9  law?  Okay.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And just for

         11  clarification, the recommendation on the car alarms

         12  is that "audible" car alarms be prescribed but we

         13  have now the technology for silent alarms that would

         14  summons law enforcement or others.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So we

         16  are looking at that issue, you should know that.

         17                 MS. JONES:  I appreciate the effort,

         18  thank you.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Carol

         20  Wilson next.

         21                 MS. WILSON:  My name is Carol Wilson.

         22    I am Chairperson for the West 8th Street Block

         23  Association, and today I would like to speak on

         24  behalf of our members.

         25                 We wholeheartedly support Intro.
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          2  Bills Number 53, 54, and 55.

          3                 Over the last several years, loud

          4  motorcycles have come to our street in larger and

          5  larger numbers, and at a greater and greater

          6  frequency.  In the spring, summer, and fall they

          7  roar down the street singly, and in packs of five,

          8  ten, and twenty, or more.  The racing screams

          9  disrupt life on the street, and invade our homes.

         10  It enters our lives from morning until night.  Then,

         11  the noise continues all night.

         12                 Those unlucky enough to have an

         13  apartment facing the street, can look forward to

         14  being rudely awakened by motorcycles most nights.

         15  Even for those. Like myself, who are blessed with an

         16  apartment in the back, the sound reverberates

         17  through the building entrance way, up the stairs,

         18  through the halls, and into our bedrooms.

         19                 For us, New York truly is "the City

         20  that never sleeps".  Many of us have lived in our

         21  apartments for years, we cannot just pick up and

         22  move to a quieter neighborhood, and we should not

         23  have to.  Why should one person on a loud motorcycle

         24  be allowed to disrupt everyone on the street?

         25                 At our first block association
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          2  meeting, it took about one minute for us to

          3  establish that we had come together over one issue-

          4  motorcycles and they noise they create.

          5                 At our third meeting, we met with

          6  police from the Sixth Precinct.  We thought there

          7  were laws against such loud behavior.  We were

          8  assured that there are laws but that our police lack

          9  the tools to fully enforce them.  They lack, among

         10  other things, the authority to seize illegal

         11  equipment, fines that are required to be paid, and

         12  fines high enough to be a deterrent. These three

         13  bills contain the tools we need to enforce our laws.

         14

         15                 So, we thank you for introducing

         16  these laws.

         17                 In addition, I would like to tell you

         18  that over the past week, our block association

         19  members have circulated a petition in support of

         20  these three bills, and they have gathered, to date,

         21  250 signatures of concerned citizens.  So I would

         22  like to give this to the Committee, if I could.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Fine,

         24  yes, certainly you can give it to us.

         25                 Thank you very much for your
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          2  statement.

          3                 Mr. Flynn.

          4                 MR. FLYNN:  Hello, my name if Cormac

          5  Flynn, and I am not the Chairman of anything.  I am

          6  just a citizen.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  That is

          8  fine.

          9                 MR. FLYNN:  I have lived on West 8th

         10  Street, the same street that Honi Klein spoke of

         11  before, that Carol just spoke of, for 38 years,

         12  since I was brought home from the hospital.

         13                 I am not going to waste our limited

         14  time on rehashing the horror stories that you have

         15  heard about it, nor the dramatic collapse of the

         16  quality of life on our block over the last few

         17  years, under the assault of motorcycle noise.

         18                 I would like, instead, to address,

         19  specifically, these three Intros., 53, 54, and 55.

         20  I support them.  I thank Councilman Gerson for

         21  introducing them.  I thank the Committee for

         22  considering them.  I am concerned that they do not

         23  go far enough. There are two specific areas that I

         24  am concerned about, and I am not an attorney, but it

         25  does not seem to me is addressed.
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          2                 The first is that what the police

          3  officers in our precinct tell us, is that one of the

          4  reasons that they do not write so many tickets is

          5  that it a somewhat pointless task.

          6                 When the violations come before a

          7  judge, it is treated like a broken tail light or

          8  something, if it has been fixed, it is just quashed,

          9  no fine is ever issued.  There is not any point in

         10  increasing the fines, if nobody ever pays them

         11  anyway.             It seems to me very silly, I

         12  mean, if somebody is brought in because they are a

         13  flasher, they are not waved off because they show up

         14  in court in pants.  This is a decriminalization of

         15  noise.  Noise is the crime, not motorcyclists.

         16  Motorcyclists who are making noise.

         17                 The other point is, has to do with

         18  the level of packs.  You have heard tell of the

         19  density on our block.  If I go out and I am playing

         20  a bagpipe, and the guy down the block is playing a

         21  tuba, and somebody across the way is playing a steel

         22  drum, that is a lot of noise but we do not know each

         23  other, so what difference does it make?  But, if we

         24  are acting, if you will pardon the pun, in concert,

         25  right, if we form a band, and we are marching up and
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          2  down the block, then we can reasonably be expected

          3  to be responsible for the other peoples noise.

          4                 I think when motorcycle clubs arrange

          5  for 20 or 30 people to come with their motorcycle,

          6  all at one time to one place, that there needs to be

          7  some level of collective responsibility for the

          8  aggregate noise, and not just the specific

          9  responsibility for your one motorcycle.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

         12  you for your insight.  I think it is useful.  Thank

         13  you, thank you all.

         14                 Alan, do you have anything?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just to thank

         16  everyone, and to ensure community and those many who

         17  could not be here, this is a first hearing.  We are

         18  going to take the input, look at it again, under the

         19  able direction of our attorney, Donna De Costanzo,

         20  and our Director of Legislative Research in my

         21  office, Solomon Turkel (phonetic), and hopefully,

         22  working with the Administration, come up with the

         23  best, of course, fairest piece of legislation

         24  possible, and hopefully, on an expedited time table,

         25  if possible in concert with the Administration's
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          2  soon to be released Code but one way or another, we

          3  will proceed on this issue, I assure you, and thank

          4  you all very much.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank

          6  you.  Our next panel, Ann Pettibone, J. De La Harpe,

          7  and Rick Hill.

          8                 Do we have everybody here?  Well, we

          9  only have one, I guess, left.  Is this Ms.

         10  Pettibone?

         11                 MS. PETTIBONE:  Yes.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well,

         13  why don't you proceed?  Go ahead.

         14                 MS. PETTIBONE:  My name is Ann

         15  Pettibone.  I live on Green Street at the corner of

         16  Houston.

         17                 I certainly understand the value of

         18  motorcycles for transportation and recreation but I

         19  think anyone who has altered a vehicle to create

         20  earthshaking, mind- numbing noise should be subject

         21  to prosecution to the fullest extent of the law.

         22  The noise is intolerable.

         23                 I request that the laws be

         24  stringently enforced. The same motorcycle which

         25  cross 6th Street, come down Broadway, and cross

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Houston, this group has been referred to several

          3  times, and I think that if you want to catch those

          4  people, just go to the intersections.  They will be

          5  back around as long as it takes for them to go up

          6  6th Avenue and across 8th Steet, and come down

          7  Broadway again.  So, stake out the intersection, and

          8  catch them the next time around, and issue the

          9  tickets.  And then, collect the fines, I do agree,

         10  that is important, if there is a fine to be

         11  collected, it should be collected.

         12                 That is all.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well,

         14  thank you very much.  Alan, anything?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just, again,

         16  thank you very much.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay,

         18  Ms. Pettibone is the last to sign up.

         19                 Is anybody here who has not spoken,

         20  who wants to contribute anything?  If not, we will

         21  close the hearing.

         22                 We have some written testimony,

         23  submitted for the record, from Kathy Van Kleeck,

         24  Vice- President of the Motorcycle Industry Council.

         25  We have a statement that will be put into the record
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          2  from Glen Gaylinn of MacDougal Street.  A statement

          3  in the record from Ronald Barney of 55 West 8th

          4  Street.  A statement in the record from Fern Jones,

          5  9 West 8th Street, and a statement in the record

          6  from Jack Eppler from 35 West 8th Street.

          7                 Okay, with those, the hearing record

          8  for today's hearing is closed.

          9                 Thank you all for attending.

         10                 (Meeting adjourned at 3:38 p.m.)
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